### AGREEMENT

### BETWEEN

## THE TOWNSHIP OF EDISON

AND

A. F. S. C. M. E.

LOCAL # 3269

2007 - 2011

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

	TABLE OF CONTENTS	PAGE
PREAMBLE		1
ARTICLE I	RECOGNITION	2
ARTICLE II	MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	3
ARTICLE III	OUT-OF-TITLE WORK	5
ARTICLE IV	MAINTENANCE OF WORK OPERATIONS	6
ARTICLE V	GRIFVANCE PROCEDURE	7
ARTICLE VI	CALADIES/LONGEVITY	10
ARTICLE VII	HOURS OF WORK	13
ARTICLE VIII	BREAKS	18
ARTICLE IX	PROBATIONARY PERIOD	19
ARTICLE X	VACATIONS	20
ARTICLE XI	SICK LEAVE	23
ARTICLE XII	LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITH AND WITHOUT PAY	27
ARTICLE XIII	TERMINAL LEAVE AND RETIREMENT	29
ARTICLE XIV	MILITARY LEAVE	30
ARTICLE XV	FINERALIEAVE	31
ARTICLE XVI	INSURANCE	32
ARTICLE XVII	HOLIDAYS	37
ARTICLE XVIII	WORK INCURRED INJURIES	39
ARTICLE XIX	DISCRIMINATION AND COERCION	40
ARTICLE XX	SEDARARII ITY AND SAVINGS	41
ARTICLE XXI	DEDUCTIONS FROM SALARY	42
ARTICLE XXII	IIIRY I FAVE	.,
ARTICLE XXIII	PERSONAL DAYS	44
ARTICLE XXIV	ACCESS TO PERSONNEL FILES	45
ARTICLE XXV	THROM DICLIES	46 46
ARTICLE XXVI	UNION BUSINESS	
ARTICLE XXVII	CHECKOFF	49
ARTICLE XXVIII	EDUCATION	50
ARTICLE XXIX	BUILLETIN BOARDS	52
ARTICLE XXX	CLOTHING ALLOWANCE AND UNIFORMS	53
ARTICLE XXXI	OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT	54
ARTICI E XXXII	FMFRGENCIFS	55
ARTICLE XXXIII	PROFESSIONAL LICENSES AND PROFESSIONAL	
,	ORGANIZATIONS	56
ARTICLE XXXIV	CAD EVDENICEC/TOLLS/DADKING	57
ARTICLE XXXV	SENIORITY, LAYOFF AND RECALLJOB DESCRIPTION/JOB QUALIFICATION	58
ARTICLE XXXVI	JOB DESCRIPTION/JOB QUALIFICATION	67
ARTICLE XXXVII	FULLY BARGAINED AGREEMENT	ნ8
ARTICLE XXXVIII	LABOR/MANAGEMENT MEETINGS	69
ARTICLE XXXIX	DURATION	70
APPENDIX A	JOB TITLES AND STARTING SALARIES	
APPENDIX B	SALARY STEPS	
APPENDIX C		
	VACATION CALENDAR SCHEDULES	

#### **PREAMBLE**

- A. This Agreement entered into this 1<sup>st</sup> day of January, 2007, by and between Edison Township in the County of Middlesex, hereinafter called the "Employer", and A.F.S.C.M.E. duly appointed representative hereinafter called the "Union", represents the complete and final understanding on all negotiable issues between the Employer and the Union.
- B. The purpose of this agreement is to promote harmonious relations between the Employer and the Union, and the establishment of an equitable and peaceful procedure for the resolution of differences, and the establishments of rates of pay, hours of work and other conditions of employment.

## ARTICLE I RECOGNITION

A. The Employer recognizes Local 3269 of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for the purpose of establishing wages, hours of work and other conditions of employment for all salaried and hourly employees in the classifications listed under Appendix A attached hereto, and by reference made a part of this Agreement and for such additional classifications as the parties may later agree to include, excluding however, confidential employees and all other employees excluded by statute, N.J.S.A. 34:13A-5.3. Employees not listed in Appendix A are also excluded except for those newly created positions agreed upon by both the Union and Management. Management will not create any new titles/classifications without the agreement of the Union.

- B. The title "employee" shall be defined to include the plural.
- C. The nature of certain matters necessitates the need for confidential positions. Management shall retain the right to hire confidential staff members. Such confidential staff members shall include those in policy-making roles and those employees who serve as support staff for those in policy-making roles. Such confidential positions shall not be represented in any way as a bargaining agent for any purpose by Local 3269 of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO. The definition of confidential employees shall be in accordance with PERC guidelines and regulations.

# ARTICLE II MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

A. The Employer hereby retains and reserves unto itself, without limitation, all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and invested in it prior to the signing of this Agreement by the laws and Constitution of the State of New Jersey and of the United States, as well as the following rights:

- To exercise the executive management and administrative control of the Township and its
  properties and facilities and activities of its employees utilizing personnel methods and
  means of the most appropriate and efficient manner possible as may from time to time be
  determined by the Township.
- To make rules of procedure and conduct, to use improved methods and equipment, to determine work schedules and shifts, as well as duties, to decide the number of employees needed for any particular time and to be in sole charge of the quality and quantity of the work required.
- Proposed new rules or modification of existing rules governing negotiable working conditions shall be negotiated with the Union before they are established as provided by the statute.
- 4. To hire all employees, whether permanent or temporary; to promote, transfer, assign or retain employees. Employment time will be limited to a maximum one hundred twenty (120) period for temporary employees, after such time allotted the employee will be permanent part-time/full-time and subjected to the probationary period as set forth in Article IX.
- 5. To set rates of pay for temporary or seasonal employees.
- 6. To suspend, demote or take any other appropriate disciplinary actions against any employee for good and just cause according to law.
- 7. Nothing contained herein shall prohibit the Township from contracting out any work.
- 8. To lay off employees in the event of lack of funds or under conditions where continuation of such work would be inefficient or nonproductive.
- 9. The Employer reserves the right to all other conditions of employment not reserved to make such changes as it deems desirable and necessary for the efficient and effective operation of the Departments involved, including, but not limited to policies regarding the use of Township equipment, such as computers, light duty work, the Township harassment policy and the establishment of a Township Drug and Alcohol Policy. It is the responsibility of the Township to distribute to all employees, all current policies in effect.

- B. In the exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities of the Township, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices in the furtherance therewith and the use of judgment and discretion in connection therewith, shall be limited only to the specific and expressed terms thereof in conformance with the Union contract, constitution and laws of New Jersey and the United States.
- C. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to deny or restrict the Employer of its rights, responsibilities and authority under R.S. 40:1-1 et seq. or any national, state, county or local laws or regulations.
- D. The parties recognize that the exercise of managerial rights is a responsibility of the Township on behalf of the taxpayers and that the Township cannot bargain away or eliminate any of its managerial rights.

# ARTICLE III OUT-OF-TITLE WORK

- A. Any employee working in an acting capacity in a job level higher than his/her own for three (3) consecutive work days, shall be paid at least entry level of the higher job classification or ten percent (10%) higher than his/her own rate of pay, whichever is greater. If the higher job classification is a non-union position where salary is not set by ordinance, the employee shall be paid eighty-five percent (85%) of the salary of the last occupant of the position. The employee appointed to an acting non-union position will remain a union member for representation purposes.
- B. Except in the case of an emergency, no employee may work out-of-title until approval is granted through the Department Head or immediate Supervisor prior to the employee performing said work. In emergency situations, approval of the Department Head or immediate supervisor may be obtained after the fact, but no later than four (4) workdays after the assignment begins. Said assignment must be for at least three (3) workdays for the purpose of out-of-title work.
- C. Management may appoint any employee to serve in an acting capacity upon mutual agreement (except where Paragraph D applies) between the employee and management on written notice to the President and Secretary of A.F.S.C.M.E. Local 3269 for a period not to exceed ninety (90) calendar days, unless re-appointed by the Business Administrator for a limit of one (1) ninety (90) day extension, with the approval of employee. At the conclusion of the ninety (90) calendar day extension, the employee will be re-instated to their former position at the former rate of pay with any and all increases that they would have received if they had stayed in their former position. This applies to union members filling open positions which are union and non-union positions. A person may only have two (2) ninety (90) day appointments within the period of two (2) years unless consented to by A.F.S.C.M.E. in writing. If A.F.S.C.M.E. does not respond within thirty (30) days of written request by management, this will be construed as a positive response. This is not to include acting positions due to returnable illness.
- D. Management may appoint any employee to serve in an acting capacity without mutual agreement for a period of one to thirty (1-30) days with an additional payment of five dollars (\$5.00) per hour, for a period of thirty-one to forty-five (31-45) days with an additional payment of six dollars (\$6.00) per hour and for a period of forty-six to sixty (46-60) days for an additional payment of seven dollars (\$7.00) per hour or ten percent (10%) of his/her own rate of pay, whichever is greater.

# ARTICLE IV MAINTENANCE OF WORK OPERATIONS

- A. The Union hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this Agreement, neither the Union or any person acting in its behalf will cause, authorize or support, nor will any of its members take part in any strike, (the concerted failure to report for duty), work stoppage, slow-down, walk-out or other illegal job action against the employer.
- B. In the event of a strike, slow-down, walk-out or job action, it is covenanted and agreed that participation in any or all such activity by any Union member shall entitle the Employer to invoke appropriate penalties.
- C. The Union agrees it will make every reasonable effort to prevent its members from participating in any strike, slow-down, or other activity aforementioned or from supporting any such activity by any other employee or group of employees of the Employer.
- D. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to limit or restrict the Employer in its right to seek and obtain such judicial relief as it may be entitled to have in law or in equity for injunction or damages, or both, in the event of such breach of the Union by its members.
  - E. The Employer agrees not to lock out its employees.

# ARTICLE V GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- A. The purpose of this procedure is to secure, at the lowest possible level, an equitable solution to the problems which may arise affecting the terms and conditions of employment under this Agreement.
- B. Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting the right of any employee having a grievance to discuss the matter informally with any appropriate member of the Township. Nothing contained herein shall prohibit the parties from raising a timeliness argument under this Article.
- C. With regard to the employee, the term "grievance" as used herein, means an appeal by an individual employee or group of employees, from an interpretation, application or violation of this Agreement or any State or Federal law and an appeal from disciplinary action. With regard to the Employer, the term "grievance" as used herein, means a complaint or controversy of the negotiable terms and conditions of this Agreement or any State or Federal law.
- D. The following constitutes the sole and exclusive method for resolving grievances between the parties covered by this Agreement, and shall be followed in its entirety unless any step is waived by mutual consent in writing:
- STEP 1: The Union shall institute written action under the provisions hereof within ten (10) working days after the event giving rise to the grievance occurred, or when the employee knows or should have reasonably known that a grievance should be filed, and an earnest effort shall be made to settle the differences between the aggrieved employee and the immediate Supervisor for the purpose of resolving the matter informally. The written grievance at this step shall contain the relevant facts and a summary of any preceding oral discussion, the applicable section of this contract, State or Federal law violated and the remedy requested by the grievant. The immediate Supervisor or his/her designated representative will answer the grievance in writing within ten (10) working days of receipt of the written grievance. Failure of the Supervisor to respond will be construed as a positive response.
- STEP 2: If the Union wishes to appeal the immediate Supervisor's decision, it shall be presented in writing to the Department Head within ten (10) days after the immediate Supervisor's response. The Department Head shall respond in writing to the Union President or designated representative within ten (10) working days. Failure to respond within ten (10) working days shall be construed as a positive response.

STEP 3: If the Union wishes to appeal the decision of the Department Head, such appeal shall be presented in writing to the Business Administrator within ten (10) working days thereafter. This presentation shall include copies of all previous correspondence relating to the matter in dispute. At this time, a hearing date with all parties involved is to be scheduled by the Business Administrator within ten (10) working days. Failure to schedule this hearing within ten (10) working days shall be construed as a positive response. The Business Administrator shall respond in writing to the Union President or representative within ten (10) working days of the hearing. Failure to respond will be construed as a positive response.

STEP 4: If the grievance is still unsettled, the Union may, within thirty (30) working days after the reply of the Business Administrator, by written notice to the Business Administrator, proceed to arbitration. The decision of the arbitrator shall be in writing and shall be rendered within thirty (30) calendar days and such a decision shall be final and binding by both parties. In the event a grievance is deemed granted as a result of the failure of the Employer to respond at any step in the grievance process, the Employer may cause the grievance to be submitted to arbitration within thirty (30) working days of the default approval by written notice to A.F.S.C.M.E. Local 3269. In the event of such a default approval, the arbitrator shall not consider such approval in its determination and the approval shall be without prejudice to the Employer's right to raise any defense whatsoever, and the Employer shall not be deemed to have waived any right or defense.

### E. The following procedure will be used to secure the services of an arbitrator:

- A representative of the Township and a representative of the Union will attempt to select a mutually satisfactory arbitrator.
- If they are unable to do so within ten (10) working days after the Business Administrator
  was notified of the Union's decision to go to arbitration, a request will be made to the New
  Jersey Public Employment Relations Commission.
- 3. Expenses for the arbitrator's services and the proceedings shall be borne equally by the Township and the Union.
- 4. The Union will notify the Township in writing of the names of its employees who are designated by the Union to represent employees under the grievance procedure. Such employees so designated by the Union will be permitted to confer with other Union representatives, employees and with Township representatives regarding matters of employee representation during working hours without loss of pay, provided however, all employees shall secure the permission of their immediate Supervisor, which permission shall not be unreasonably denied.

- F. Upon prior notice and authorization of the Department Head or immediate Supervisor, the designated Union representative shall be permitted as a member of the Grievance Committee to confer with employees and the Employer on specific grievances in accordance with the grievance procedure set forth herein during work hours of employees, without loss of pay, provided the conduct of said business does not require the recall of off-duty employees.
- G. The time limits expressed herein shall be adhered to. If any grievance has not been initiated within the time limits specified then the grievance shall be deemed to have been abandoned. If the grievance is not processed to the next succeeding step in the grievance procedure within the time limits prescribed there under, then the disposition of the grievance at the last preceding step shall be deemed to be conclusive. If a decision is not rendered within the time limits prescribed for decision at steps one and two in the grievance procedure, then the grievance shall be deemed to have been granted. Nothing herein shall prevent the parties from mutually agreeing in writing to extend or contract the time limits for proceeding with the grievance at any step in the grievance procedure.

### ARTICLE VI SALARIES/ LONGEVITY

#### A. Longevity Schedule:

4%	Completion of 12 <sup>th</sup> year
4 1/2%	Completion of 14 <sup>th</sup> year
5%	Completion of 16 <sup>th</sup> year
5 1/2%	Completion of 18 <sup>th</sup> year
6%	Completion of 20 <sup>th</sup> year
6 1/2%	Completion of 22 <sup>nd</sup> year
7%	Completion of 24 <sup>th</sup> year

Longevity adjustments shall be effective as follows: Any employee whose employment commences between January 1 and June 30 shall be credited with a full year of service credit on January 1<sup>st</sup> of the anniversary year for purposes of longevity entitlement. Employees hired after June 30 shall receive the longevity increment beginning on January 1<sup>st</sup> following the anniversary date of their employment beginning at the completion of their fourth (4<sup>th</sup>) year of service and every year thereafter. Employees hired after June 30, 1993 shall not be eligible for longevity. Longevity will be frozen at the 2010 rate and will continue to be distributed at that rate for future years.

#### B. Salaries:

All adjustments to meet starting salary (Appendix B) shall be made before increases are calculated.

All employees shall receive the following percentage increases:

2007	-	3.00%
2008		3.00%
2009	-	2.50%
2010	•••	2.50%
2011		2.50%

There will be salary adjustments for 2009, 2010 and 2011. These adjustments will be calculated using the base salary in 2006 and the salary in Appendix A for the year 2011. The difference will be distributed each January 1<sup>st</sup> in 1/3 increments for the years 2009, 2010 and 2011.

Example:

a province and the last state of

Clerk Typist 2007 base starting salary = \$20,000 Clerk Typist 2011 base starting salary = \$28,000

Difference of \$8,000 to be distributed in 1/3 for year 2009, 2010, 2011 = \$2,666/year.

Example of salary adjustment for clerk typist:

There will be a step system for job titles. Appendix B indicates the additional salary adjustment to be added onto your salary on July 1<sup>st</sup>, as long as criteria/time in grade requirements is met, as stated in the job description. The above base can change if the person attains their step. This will increase their base by \$1,000.00 in 2009 thus increasing their raise for 2010. Example follows with both step requirements met in 2009 and 2010.

There will be salary adjustments for 2009, 2010, and 2011 for Telecommunicators. These adjustments will be calculated using the base salary in 2007 and the salary in Appendix A for the year 2011, Telecommunicators will also receive adjustments for years of service. The adjustments will be distributed each January 1st in 1/3 increments for the years 2009, 2010 and 2011.

Example: Telecommunicator: with a start date of 5/13/03

Telecommunicator: 2007 base salary = \$34.000

Telecommunicator: 2011 base starting salary = \$39,000

Salary adjustment:

Difference of \$5000 to be distributed in 1/3 for year 2009, 2010, 2011 = \$1666.66/year

Years of service adjustment:

\$2,500 7/1/2005 equals 1 year \$2,500 7/1/2006 equals 2 year \$2,500 7/1/2007 equals 3 year \$2,500 7/1/2008 equals 4 year

Total of \$10,000 to be distributed in 1/3 for year 2009, 2010, 2011 = \$3333.33/year

Total adjustments for 2009, 2010, and 2011 = \$1666.66 + 3333.33 total per year of \$4999.99

Example of salary adjustments for Telecommunicators:

# ARTICLE VII HOURS OF WORK

A. The regular work day for all full-time employees shall consist of seven (7) hours of work plus one (1) hour or one half (½) hour lunch period. The hours of operation shall be 5:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. The hours of work for all Telecommunicators shall be as stated in paragraph G. The work shifts for full time employees shall be as follows:

Shift A - Transportation Driver - First Shift

Shift B - Transportation Driver - Second Shift

Shift C - Transportation Driver - Third Shift

Shift D - 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.

Shift E - 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.

Shift F - 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

Shift G - 2:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. (Recreation and Edison TV only)

Shift H - 4:00 p.m. to 12:00 a.m. (Edison TV only)

Shift A, B and C above shall be established by the Township and may be changed upon thirty (30) days notice.

Employees on Shifts D, E and F may choose to begin work up to one (1) hour earlier than scheduled. Should an employee begin work earlier than scheduled, he/she will be entitled to leave work earlier than his/her regularly scheduled ending time on the day he/she arrived early. The amount of time employees may leave work early may not exceed the amount of time the employee arrived early for work. The flex-time provisions of this section must be mutually agreed upon by both the Supervisor and the employee. So far as practicable, an employee's workday shall not be changed without ten (10) working days notice. No employee, prior to January 2003, with the exception of Transportation Drivers that were hired after January 1, 2002, shall have their shift changed unless mutually agreed upon by both the employee and the Township.

B. The regular work week shall be from Monday through Friday, inclusive, and shall consist of not more than thirty-five (35) hours plus lunch with the following exceptions – for employees in the Recreation Department and the Division of Animal Control and Edison TV, the work week shall be:

- A Monday through Friday
- B Tuesday through Saturday \*
- C Sunday through Thursday \*
- D Wednesday through Sunday \*
- \* Work weeks B, C and D above applies only to the following titles: Recreation Leader, Assistant Recreation Leader, Animal Control Officer, and Shelter Maintenance Worker. Work weeks A & B apply to Edison TV. No employee hired prior to January 1, 2002, except Edison TV, shall have their work week changed unless mutually agreed between the Township and Employee.
- C. Any time in excess of thirty-five (35) hours or forty (40) hours where appropriate, shall be considered overtime and shall be compensated at the rate of one and one-half (1-½) times the regular rate of pay for each hour or fraction thereof in excess of thirty-five (35) hours or forty (40) hours where appropriate. For full time employees, double time shall be paid for all work performed on Sundays and on Holidays except where Sunday is part of an employees normal work week and time and one-half (1-½) pay shall be paid for all work performed on Saturdays except when Saturday is part of an employees normal work week. The overtime provisions of this article shall only apply to part-time employees for: 1) time in excess of thirty-five (35) or forty (40) hours; or 2) work assigned on Saturdays and Sundays when employee was not advised of the possibility at the time of employment. Overtime must be authorized by a Department Head or Supervisor in charge. In the event an employee is called back to work after the conclusion of a normal work shift, the employee will be entitled to a minimum of two (2) hours of overtime. Upon receipt of a work related telephone call, the employee shall automatically receive two hours of overtime, whether or not they report to work. Each additional call within the 2 hour window will result in 1 hour of compensatory time. This is to include those employees on call as set forth in Section D of this Article.
  - D. All employees covered by this Agreement, who are required by their Department Head, immediate Supervisor or Business Administrator to be on call at any time during the week, shall be compensated at the rate of one hundred dollars (\$100) per week for 2007, one hundred fifty dollars (\$150) per week for 2008, two hundred dollars (\$200) per week for 2009, two hundred fifty dollars (\$250) per week for 2010, and two hundred seventy five dollars (\$275) per week for 2011.
  - E. There is no guarantee of overtime. However, when overtime is required or available, such overtime will be assigned to those employees in the department who normally perform said work. Overtime opportunities will first be offered to the most senior employee from a rotating list from that division who normally performs said work. Should the most senior employee refuse the opportunity for

any reason, they go to the bottom of the list. It shall be offered in descending order of seniority; if no one accepts the opportunity, the least senior employee will be required to work overtime. The next time overtime is offered, it will be offered to the next senior employee on the rotation list immediately following the last employee who worked overtime.

- F. The overtime for all Telecommunicators shall be as follows: There is no guarantee of overtime. However, when overtime is required or available, such overtime will be first assigned to those employees in the department who normally perform said work. Overtime opportunities will first be offered to the most senior employee from a rotating list from that Division who normally perform said work. Should the most senior employee refuse the opportunity for any reason, it will be offered to the next employee in seniority and will continue to be offered in descending order of seniority. If an employee accepts the opportunity, it will be documented and when the next time overtime is offered, it will be offered to the next senior employee on the rotating list immediately following the last employee on the rotating list who took the overtime. If nobody accepts the overtime, the least senior employee on duty, not including Telecommunicators already working on overtime or Trainees, will be required to work the overtime. If nobody accepts the overtime from the rotating list, the next overtime opportunity will again start at the top of the rotating list. The least senior on the upcoming shift may be required to work the overtime, if the full A Telecommunicator cannot be shift of Telecommunicators on duty are already working overtime. required to work in excess of sixteen (16) consecutive hours, but may voluntarily accept an assignment up to a maximum of twenty (20) consecutive work hours provided the Telecommunicator will have at least twenty four (24) hours off duty immediately following such assignment. A Telecommunicator shall be ineligible for overtime on an entire day when the Telecommunicator has taken off for Bereavement or Sick Leave. A Telecommunicator may voluntarily remove his/her name from the rotating overtime list. Such voluntary removal will forfeit that Telecommunicator's claims for a missed overtime opportunity. A request to be removed, or restored, to the rotating list must be submitted in writing to the Communications Bureau Commander. A voluntary removal from the rotating list shall not excuse any Telecommunicator from being mandatorily held over or called in early for overtime as defined above. Once a Telecommunicator accepts a voluntary overtime position, it becomes a binding scheduled shift. A Telecommunicator cannot re-call the rotating list in order to give up the overtime position once it has been voluntarily accepted without prior approval of a supervisor.
  - G. Telecommunicators shall be on a steady 4-day-on-4-day-off schedule with a ten (10) hour workday, including a one (1) hour paid lunch period. Additionally, each employee will have a sixty-eight (68) hour Training Bank without any additional compensation. The Training Bank will be used for any work related professional training, but it cannot be used to have the Telecommunicator work their regular

duties at the Communications Center Console. Attendance at a Training Bank Session is mandatory unless excused in advance by the Commanding Officer of the Communications Bureau. If the Township of Edison fails to schedule sufficient Training Bank Sessions to reclaim the entire sixty-eight (68) hours in one calendar year, the Township shall forfeit its right to claim those hours. The work hours shall be:

0745-1745
1230-2230
1645-0245
2215-0815

The Police Director may adjust the hours once annually, due to work volume.

Shift assignments shall be made in accordance with a seniority bid system. Seniority prevails except if it results in a shift where all the employees have less than one (1) year's experience as a Telecommunicator. In that circumstance only, the least senior Telecommunicator with at least one (1) year's experience in that title will be placed on that shift. Probationary Telecommunicators do not have the right to shift bid.

- H. Employees with the exception of Transportation Drivers hired after January 1, 2002 and Telecommunicators, working on shifts of which the starting time is after 11:00 a.m., shall receive, in addition to their regular pay, an additional one dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) per hour at the signing of this agreement.
- I. There shall be a shift differential of seventy five cents (\$.75) per hour for Telecommunicators scheduled to work the second (early afternoon) shift, one dollar (\$1.00) per hour for Telecommunicators scheduled to work the third (late afternoon) shift, and one dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) per hour for Telecommunicators scheduled to work the fourth (midnight) shift to be paid on the second paycheck following each quarter. There shall be no shift differential for Telecommunicators who work the first (day) shift.
- J. When overtime becomes available, the employee shall have the option to either be paid overtime or take compensatory time (comp time). Employees can accumulate compensatory hours equal to one (1) week that may be carried from year to year. All additional compensatory hours earned must be used within ninety (90) calendar days. Compensatory time will be awarded in the following manner: one and one half (1-1/2) hours Monday through Saturday, and double time for Sundays and Holidays for every hour worked. Telecommunicators will be awarded one and one-half (1-1/2) hours comp time for every overtime hour worked regardless of the day. If any additional, pre-approved compensatory time is

denied by management, then the employee shall be either paid for the time off or be allowed to reschedule the time off over and above the normal ninety (90) day period. All scheduled compensatory time shall be mutually agreed upon by the employee and management.

K. Shift Exchanges will be limited to fifteen (15) per Telecommunicator per year. Exception to this is a Telecommunicator attending an educational class, as defined in Article XXVIII of this contract, the shift exchange will not be counted against their accrued number as listed above, for the Telecommunicator requesting the shift exchange or the Telecommunicator changing shifts for that employee.

### ARTICLE VIII BREAKS

Employees covered by this Agreement shall receive two (2) fifteen (15) minute breaks per workday, one in the morning and one in the afternoon. Break time shall be determined by management.

#### **ARTICLE IX**

#### PROBATIONARY PERIOD

A. All employees except Telecommunicators hired during the term of this Agreement shall serve a probationary period of one hundred twenty (120) calendar days from the date of hire. During this probationary period, the Employer reserves the right to discharge a probationary employee for any reason. An employee, if discharged, shall not have recourse through the grievance procedure set forth in this Agreement.

B. Telecommunicator trainees hired during the term of this Agreement shall serve a probationary period which will expire three (3) months after said employee becomes a Telecommunicator Operator.

# ARTICLE X VACATIONS

A. Employees hired prior to June 30, 1993 shall enjoy the following vacation schedule (see Appendix C):

First year - One day per month of employment not to exceed ten (10) days.

2 - 5 years - 10 days

6 - 9 <u>years</u> - 15 days

10 - 11 years - 20 days

One day each additional year after eleven (11) to a maximum of thirty-five (35) days. Any employee who, as of January 1, 2003, has earned more than thirty-five (35) vacation days, shall be capped at the amount of vacation days earned as of January 1, 2003.

B Employees hired on or after June 30, 1993 shall enjoy the following vacation schedule (see Appendix C):

First year - one (1) day per month of employment not to exceed ten (10) days

2 - 5 years - 10 days

<u>6 – 9 years</u> – 15 days

<u>10 – 14 years</u> – 20 days

15 years and over - 25 days

C. All Telecommunicators/Assistant TAC Officers hired prior to June 30, 1995 shall enjoy the following vacation schedule:

<u>1 – 5 years</u> – 14 days

<u>6 – 10 years</u> – 21 days

11 - 14 years - 28 days

<u>15 – 19 years</u> – 35 days

20 years and over - 42 days

Any employee who, as of January 1, 2003, has earned more than thirty-five (35) vacation days, shall be capped at the amount of vacation days earned as of January 1, 2003.

D. All Telecommunicators hired on or after June 30, 1995 shall adhere to the vacation schedule as indicated in Section B of this Article.

E. Permanent part-time employees who work an average of at least twenty (20) and based on one hundred twenty (120) calendar day average, will receive pro-rated vacation based on hours of work per week divided by thirty-five (35), multiplied by the number of vacation hours credited for their years of service.

For Example: Using this formula, a part-time employee with seven (7) years of service who works an average of twenty (20) hours per week would be pro-rated as follows:

\* Number of vacation hours as determined by years of service based on a seven (7) hour day.

PLEASE NOTE: In all instances where there is a fraction of an hour, the employee will be credited for a full hour.

Any permanent part-time employee who is a member of the Union before September 17, 2003 and who is receiving vacation benefits shall continue to receive pro rata vacation benefits regardless of whether the average number of hours worked are less than twenty (20) per week.

- F. Employees will be allowed to carry over only fifty percent (50%) of one year of accumulated vacation days into the next calendar year. Employees shall have the option of receiving payment, their current wage rate for up to fifty percent (50%) of unused vacation days. The fifty percent (50%) will be based on amount of vacation days that they were entitled to that year. Any employee may exercise this vacation pay option by concurrently notifying his/her Department Director and then the Business Administrator in writing via a form provided by Human Resources Division, before January 31 of the following year. Payment will be made to the employee no later than April 1<sup>st</sup> of that year.
- G. Any employee who is on a leave of absence (i.e., unpaid leave) shall have his/her vacation leave pro-rated for the time absent.
- H. Changes in the scheduling of vacations will not be permitted without the prior approval of the Department Head.

- I. If, for any reason management changes or alters an employee's vacation, the vacation may be rescheduled pending approval of the Department Head. If the Department Head does not approve the rescheduling of the vacation time not taken, then the employee shall either be paid for the time or be allowed to reschedule the time over and above the normal one half (½) year allowable carryover at the employee's option.
  - J. Vacation time must be taken in either full or half day increments.

### ARTICLE XI SICK LEAVE

- A. <u>Definition</u> Sick Leave shall mean paid leave that shall be granted to an employee who:
  - Through sickness or injury becomes incapacitated to a degree that makes it impossible for the employee to perform the duties of the employee's position.
  - 2. Is quarantined by a physician because the employee has been exposed to a contagious disease.
- B. <u>Eligibility</u> Each full time employee over thirty-four (34) hours, excluding seasonal and temporary employees, shall be eligible for sick leave.

Those employees who work less than thirty-four (34) hours per week, but a minimum of twenty (20) hours per week, based upon a one hundred twenty (120) calendar day average, shall receive prorated sick leave based on hours of work per week, divided by thirty-five (35), multiplied by eighty-four (84).

For Example: Using this formula, an employee who works an average of twenty (20) hours per week shall be pro-rated as follows:

$$\frac{20}{35}$$
 X  $\frac{84}{1}$  =  $\frac{1680}{35}$  = 48 hours

\* Number of sick hours for full-time employees based on a seven (7) hour day.

<u>PLEASE NOTE:</u> In all instances where there is a fraction of an hour, the employee will be credited for a full hour.

The Township shall notify each employee at the time of hiring as to eligibility for sick leave.

Any permanent part-time employee who is a member of the Union prior to September 17, 2003 and who is receiving sick leave shall continue to receive pro rata sick leave regardless of whether the average number of hours worked are less than twenty (20) per week.

C. Amount of Leave – Each employee who is eligible for sick leave shall receive twelve (12) days per annum to be accumulated. These days will be credited to each employee upon January 1<sup>st</sup> of each year. Employees having accumulated one (1) or more of their sick days credited for that year, will have the option to be paid their current wage rate for up to six (6) of these accumulated days in lieu of carrying them over. Any employee who has accumulated more than six (6) days as outlined above, and wishes

to be paid wages for their remaining days in lieu of carrying them over, may be paid one (1) day's current rate of pay for every two (2) accumulated sick days. An employee may exercise this sick leave option by concurrently notifying his/her Department Director and then the Business Administrator in writing via a form provided by Human Resources Division, before January 31 of the following year. Payment shall be made no later than the first pay period following April 1st of the next year.

#### D. Reporting -

- If an employee is absent from work for reasons that entitle him/her to sick leave, the Department Head or his/her designated representative shall be notified within 30 (thirty) minutes after the beginning of his/her shift.
- 2. The employee reporting sick leave shall notify the Supervisor or his designee of the following:
  - The nature of the illness.
  - The telephone number where the employee may be contacted during sick leave.
  - The expected duration of sick leave, if known.
- 3. The Supervisor shall record this information on the appropriate sick leave form.
- 4. Failure to notify the Department Head or his/her designated representative may be cause for denial of the use of sick leave for that absence and constitute cause for disciplinary action. An employee who is absent three (3) consecutive workdays or more and does not notify the Department Head or designee any of the first two (2) days shall be subject to dismissal.
- E. <u>General</u> The Township may require proof of illness or injury when: a) the Township reasonably believes an employee is abusing sick leave, including but not limited to, absences that preceded or follow regularly scheduled days off or holidays; b) an employee has been absent on sick leave for five (5) or more consecutive workdays. During the protracted periods of illness or disability of an employee, the Department Head may require interim reports on the condition of the patient at periods from the attending physician and/or a Township medical physician. When under medical care, employees are expected to conform to the instructions of the attending physician if they wish to qualify for salary payment during such period of illness or disability.
  - No employee shall be allowed to work and endanger the health and well-being of other employees and if the employee's condition warrants, the employee may be directed to the Township physician for an opinion as to the fitness of duty.
  - Sick leave with pay shall not be allowed under the following conditions: When the employee, under medical care, fails to carry out the orders of the attending physician.

- 3. The recommendation of the Township medical physician, as well as those of the attending physician, as to the justification for the absence from duty on account of disability or illness of more than five (5) days or of the fitness of the employee to return to duty shall be considered by the Department Head. The Department Head reserves the right in such cases where there is a difference of professional opinion between the Township physician and the personal physician, to require the employee to submit to an examination by a third doctor to be paid by the Township.
- 4. In charging an employee with sick leave, the smallest unit to be considered is one (1) hour.
- 5. Sick leave shall not be allowed for professional services that may be normally scheduled within the employee's regular time off, however, personal leave may be used for ordinary dental care or doctor's appointments in increments of one (1) hour. The utilization of sick leave for elective medical procedures will not be considered without sufficient medical evidence to substantiate the necessity of scheduling the medical or dental services during the workday.
- Habitual absenteeism or tardiness may be cause for discipline up to and including discharge.
- 7. Any employee who calls in sick for the purpose of engaging in outside employment or who engages in outside employment while on sick leave without the permission of the Department Head shall be subject to immediate disciplinary action up to and including discharge.
- F. <u>Sick Leave Confinement Restriction</u> If an employee is absent for reasons that entitle the employee to sick leave because of an injury sustained during his/her employment, he/she shall remain at his/her place of confinement during the period in which he/she is scheduled for work.
  - 1. If an emergency necessitates his/her absence from place of confinement, such emergency shall be reported as soon as possible utilizing the below described procedure.
  - If any other reason to leave the confines of his/her home or place of confinement is necessary, the employee must notify the Supervisor, Department Head and/or Business Administrator in each instance.
  - The Supervisor may visit the employee who is on sick or worker's compensation leave at his/her residence or place of confinement. Such visits shall be recorded on the sick leave form.
  - 4. The Supervisor may telephone the employee who has reported off on sick leave or is on worker's compensation cleave at his/her place of confinement during his/her scheduled work hours.

- 3. The recommendation of the Township medical physician, as well as those of the attending physician, as to the justification for the absence from duty on account of disability or illness of more than five (5) days or of the fitness of the employee to return to duty shall be considered by the Department Head. The Department Head reserves the right in such cases where there is a difference of professional opinion between the Township physician and the personal physician, to require the employee to submit to an examination by a third doctor to be paid by the Township.
- 4. In charging an employee with sick leave, the smallest unit to be considered is one (1) hour.
- 5. Sick leave shall not be allowed for professional services that may be normally scheduled within the employee's regular time off, however, personal leave may be used for ordinary dental care or doctor's appointments in increments of one (1) hour. The utilization of sick leave for elective medical procedures will not be considered without sufficient medical evidence to substantiate the necessity of scheduling the medical or dental services during the workday.
- Habitual absenteeism or tardiness may be cause for discipline up to and including discharge.
- 7. Any employee who calls in sick for the purpose of engaging in outside employment or who engages in outside employment while on sick leave without the permission of the Department Head shall be subject to immediate disciplinary action up to and including discharge.
- F. <u>Sick Leave Confinement Restriction</u> If an employee is absent for reasons that entitle the employee to sick leave because of an injury sustained during his/her employment, he/she shall remain at his/her place of confinement during the period in which he/she is scheduled for work.
  - If an emergency necessitates his/her absence from place of confinement, such emergency shall be reported as soon as possible utilizing the below described procedure.
  - If any other reason to leave the confines of his/her home or place of confinement is necessary, the employee must notify the Supervisor, Department Head and/or Business Administrator in each instance.
  - The Supervisor may visit the employee who is on sick or worker's compensation leave at his/her residence or place of confinement. Such visits shall be recorded on the sick leave form.
  - 4. The Supervisor may telephone the employee who has reported off on sick leave or is on worker's compensation cleave at his/her place of confinement during his/her scheduled work hours.

# ARTICLE XII LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITH AND WITHOUT PAY

### Section 1 - Leave of Absence without Pay

A. Upon sixty (60) days notice except in cases of emergency, employees may apply to the Employer for a leave of absence without pay for a period not exceeding one hundred twenty (120) calendar days without loss of seniority rights at the discretion of the Employer. Extension for such a leave may be granted or denied at the discretion of the Township. Such a leave may be granted to employees who are temporarily or physically handicapped or incapacitated to such an extent that they are unable to perform their duties. Leaves may also be granted to attend an approved school with a course of study designed to increase an employee's usefulness upon return to service.

- B. A leave of absence will not be granted to employees as a matter of convenience or temporary advantage to such employees by reason of work, hours of work, or increased compensation. Employees seeking a leave of absence without pay shall submit such a request in writing, stating the reasons why the leave is desired and the expected return to duty date. In a non-emergent situation, the Employer will notify the employee of his decision at least two (2) weeks prior to the start of the requested leave date.
- C. An employee leaving a position prior to receiving said authorization by the respective Department Head involved, shall be deemed to have left said position and abandoned such job title. Further, such an act shall be considered a resignation from the employment of the Township.
- D. No seniority rights shall accrue during a leave of absence. Any leave without pay beyond one hundred twenty (120) calendar days shall disqualify the employee for medical coverage.
  - E. Nothing in this revision shall supersede the provisions of the State or Federal Family Leave Act.
- F. Prior to commencing an Unpaid Leave of Absence, the employee must fully exhaust all compensatory time previously accrued.

### Section 2 - Maternity Leave

A. Maternity leave shall be granted by the Township Business Administrator or designee provided the request is made in writing one (1) month prior to the effective date of leave. The leave shall be with

pay, but not to exceed six (6) weeks. Leave with pay shall not affect any accrued sick, vacation or personal time.

- B. Nothing in this revision shall supersede the provisions of the Federal Family Leave Act but shall be construed to deal exclusively with maternity leave.
- C. Permanent part-time employees who work a minimum of twenty (20) hours, based upon a one hundred twenty (120) calendar day average, will receive pro-rated maternity leave based on hours of work per week divided by thirty-five (35), multiplied by two hundred ten (210) hours.

For Example: Using this formula, a part-time employee who works an average of twenty (20) hours per week would be pro-rated as follows:

<u>PLEASE NOTE:</u> In all instances where there is a fraction of an hour, the employee will be credited for a full hour.

Any permanent part-time employee who is a member of the Union on September 17, 2003 and who is eligible for maternity leave shall continue to receive pro rata maternity leave regardless of whether the average number of hours worked are less than twenty (20) per week.

D. When the Township of Edison and A.F.S.C.M.E. Local 3269 mutually agree upon in writing a short term and long term disability coverage, said coverage plan will be instituted in lieu of the benefit mentioned in A above.

# ARTICLE XIII TERMINAL LEAVE AND RETIREMENT

A. Any employee having been continuously employed by the Township for ten (10) years or more shall receive twenty (20) days of terminal leave or severance pay. The terms of this section however, shall not apply to those employees who have been discharged for cause.

- B. In addition to A above, when an employee leaves the employ of the township after twenty-five (25) years of continuous service or the age of sixty (60), he/she will receive:
  - 1. 100% (one hundred percent) pay for accumulated sick time not to exceed \$20,000 (twenty thousand dollars); and
  - 2. 100% (one hundred percent) pay for all accrued vacation time and any allowable remaining personal days.
  - 3. Retirement payoff will be made within thirty (30) working days from the last day of employment.
- C. In addition to A above, when an employee leaves the employ of the Township after fifteen years (15) of continuous service, regardless of age, he/she will receive:
  - Twenty (20) days of their accumulated sick time at full pay; and
  - One hundred percent (100%) pay for all accrued vacation time and any allowable remaining personal days.
  - Retirement payoff will be made within thirty (30) working days from the last day of employment.

## ARTICLE XIV MILITARY LEAVE

- A. An employee who is a member of the National Guard, Naval Militia, Air national Guard or a Reserve component of any of the armed forces of the United States and is required to engage in field training, shall be granted military leave of absence with pay for the period of such training as is authorized by law. This paid leave of absence shall be in addition to his/her vacation.
- B. When an employee not on probation has been called to active duty or inducted into the military or naval services of the United States, he/she shall have their pension benefits continued for up to two (2) years. Such employee will be reinstated without loss of privileges or seniority accrued to the last day worked, provided he/she reports for duty with the employer within sixty (60) days following his/her honorable discharge from the military service and provided he/she has not voluntarily extended the length of his/her military service.
- C. If the military service occurs during a time of declared war, reinstatement will be allowed up to three (3) months after the date of honorable discharge unless the employee is incapacitated at the time of discharge, in which case reinstatement will be allowed up to three (3) months following his/her recovery, so long as recovery occurs within two (2) years from date of discharge.
- D. Nothing contained herein shall supersede the provisions of The Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA) or any other Federal or State Statute governing military leaves of absence.

## ARTICLE XV FUNERAL LEAVE

A. In the event of death in the employee's immediate family, any employee covered by this Agreement shall be granted four (4) working days off without loss of pay within thirty (30) calendar days from the day of death or the day of the funeral.

- B. The "immediate family" shall include spouse, common law spouse, civil partner, legally recognized spouse, children, grandparents, grandchildren, brother, sister, parents; current father-in-law or mother-in-law, current step relatives; brothers, sisters, parents and grandparents of employee's spouse.
  - C. Reasonable verification of the event may be required by the Township.
- D. An employee shall be granted one (1) working day off with full pay in case of the death of a relative not enumerated in Section B above or a person who had a close relationship with the employee, for the purpose of attending the funeral. Such bereavement leave shall be approved by the Department Head, shall not be reasonably denied and is not in addition to any holiday time falling on the day of the funeral. Telecommunicators working the midnight shift shall be granted the one day on the midnight shift prior to the funeral day.
- E. Effective January 1, 2003, in addition to leave granted by A above, if an employee in the bargaining unit has to travel 450 (four hundred fifty) miles or more to attend a funeral of an immediate family member, he/she shall be entitled to one (1) extra consecutive day off without loss of pay.

#### ARTICLE XVI INSURANCE

The employer has the right to change insurance carriers or institute a self insurance program so long as an equal or better level of benefits is provided. For the purpose of this Article, "employee" shall mean a permanent employee who averages twenty (20) hours or more per week, based upon an average of one hundred forty (140) calendar days.

- The employer agrees to provide medical, dental, optical, prescription and insurance benefits to all permanent employees as follows:
  - Dental and optical benefits shall be the same as provided on January 1, 2001. A.
  - Prescription benefits: B.

Employees will be responsible for the following co-pays:

	<u>Generic</u>	<u>Brand</u>
2009	0	\$15.00
2010	0	\$20.00
2011	Ō	\$22.00
2011	= -	

The co-pays apply to prescriptions of up to a thirty-four (34) day supply.

Major Medical and Hospitalization: C.

> Permanent employees hired before September 17, 2003 will be offered the following options for medical coverage. Those employees who were hired before September 17, 2003 and are currently in the POS will have a one-time option to return to the Traditional Plan. Employees hired on or after September 17, 2003 will be offered the POS and PPO options only.

### 1. Point of Service (POS) Plan

In network provider with co-pay of \$15.00 per visit.

Out of Network provider as follows:

- Individual deductible \$150.00 A.
- Family deductible \$300.00 B.
- For single coverage, the employee is responsible for thirty percent (30%) of the first ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) of submitted and C. covered eligible expenses up to three thousand dollars (\$3,000), excluding the deductible, after which benefits will be paid at onehundred percent (100%) of submitted and covered eligible expenses.

- For family coverage, the employee is responsible for thirty percent (30%) of the first twenty five thousand (\$25,000) of submitted and D. covered eligible expenses up to seven thousand five hundred (\$7,500), excluding the deductible, after which benefits will be paid at one hundred percent (100%) of submitted and covered eligible expenses.
- Benefits covered under this article shall have no maximum lifetime E. limit.
- Hospital expenses will be included under the deductible and co-F.
- Coverage for dependents shall terminate on said dependent's twentythird (23rd) birthday, except for those dependents who had reached G. the age of nineteen (19) as of January 1, 2003 and were covered by the Township's medical insurance as of September 17, 2003. Those dependents shall be covered until their twenty-fifth (25<sup>th</sup>) birthday.

Employee contribution for Point of Service (POS) Plan (bimonthly): The POS plans (Single, Parent/Child, Husband/Wife, Family) will be available at no cost to employees hired prior to 9/17/2003.

Single Parent/Child Husband/Wife	2009	2010	2011
	0	0	0
	\$50.00	\$50.00	\$50.00
	\$50.00	\$50.00	\$50.00
	\$50.00	\$50.00	\$50.00
Family	φοσ.σ-	•	

### 2. Preferred Provider Organization - PPO Plan

In network provider with co-pay of \$20.00 per visit.

Out of Network provider as follows:

- Individual deductible \$300.00 A.
- Family deductible \$600.00 В.
- For single coverage, the employee is responsible for twenty percent (20%) of the first fifteen thousand dollars (\$15,000) of submitted and C. covered eligible expenses up to three thousand dollars (\$3,000), excluding the deductible, after which benefits will be paid at onehundred percent (100%) of submitted and covered eligible expenses.
- For family coverage, the employee is responsible for twenty percent (20% of the first thirty thousand dollars (\$30,000) of submitted and D. covered eligible expenses up to six thousand dollars (\$6.000), excluding the deductible, after which benefits will be paid at one hundred percent (100%) of submitted and covered eligible expenses.
- Benefits covered under this article shall have no maximum lifetime E. limit.
- Hospital expenses will be included under the deductible and co-F. insurance.
- Coverage for dependents shall terminate on said dependent's twentythird (23rd) birthday, except for those dependents who had reached G. the age of 19 as of January 1, 2003 and were covered by the Township's medical insurance as of September 17, 2003. Those dependents shall be covered until their twenty-fifth (25th) birthday.

Employee contribution for PPO Plan (bimonthly);

Single Parent /Child Husband/Wife	2009	2010	2011
	\$20.00	\$20.00	\$20.00
	\$55.00	\$60.50	\$66.50
	\$55.00	\$60.50	\$66.50
	\$55.00	\$60.50	\$66.50
Family	\$55.00	\$60.50	φοσ.

Note: Employees who are currently in the Traditional Plan may switch to the PPO Plan for a fifteen (15) month period during a special open enrollment for April 1, 2009. If the employee decides to return to the Traditional Plan, he/she must notify the township's HR Office no later than sixty (60) days prior to the end of the fifteen (15) month period.

#### 3. Traditional Plan

- A. Individual deductible \$300.00
- B. Family deductible \$600.00
- C. For single coverage, the employee is responsible for twenty percent (20%) of the first one thousand five hundred dollars (\$1,500) of submitted and covered eligible expenses up to three hundred (\$300), excluding the deductible, after which benefits will be paid at one-hundred percent (100%) of submitted and covered
- D. For family coverage, the employee is responsible for twenty percent (20%) of the first three thousand dollars (\$3,000) of submitted and covered eligible expenses up to six hundred dollars (\$600), excluding the deductible, after which benefits will be paid at one hundred percent (100%) of submitted and covered eligible
- E. Benefits covered under this article shall have a maximum lifetime limit of two million dollars (\$2,000,000).
- F. Hospital expenses will be included under the deductible and co-insurance.
- G. Coverage for dependents shall terminate on said dependent's twenty-third (23<sup>rd</sup>) birthday, except for those dependents who had reached the age of nineteen (19) as of January 1, 2003 and were covered by the Township's medical insurance as of September 17, 2003. Those dependents shall be covered until their twentyfifth (25th) birthday.

Employee contribution for Traditional coverage (bimonthly):

Single Parent/Child Husband/Wife Family	2009 \$42.50 \$80.50 \$88.50 \$111.50	2010 \$48.90 \$92.60 \$101.80 \$128.20	2011 \$56.20 \$106.50 \$117.00 \$147.40
--	---	--	---

The employer agrees to provide to those members currently enrolled in a Township health plan who retire prior to the first day of the month following the execution of this contract the same medical, dental, optical, prescription and insurance benefits as provided to them at the date of retirement.

Any part-time employee, who was a member of AFSCME Local 3269 on 8/13/2003 and has received benefits, will continue to receive benefits regardless of the amount of hours worked.

- II. "Network" as used in this Article refers to the Horizon Point of Service (POS) Managed Care Network or the Horizon Preferred Provider Organization Network.
- III. Employees have the option to choose not to enroll in the Township health benefit program, in part or in whole. If they so choose, they can request from the Business Administrator a monthly municipal contribution in lieu of receipt of benefits. The amount of such contribution shall be equal to one half (1/2) of the amount the Township would charge for COBRA for such coverage. Receipt of a municipal contribution is voluntary on the part of the employee and they may enroll/re-enroll in the township program during the open enrollment period. Any employee receiving health benefits from the Township through their spouse shall not be eligible for health benefits or a municipal contribution under this article except those employees involved in the arbitration settlement Docket No. AR-96-231, that stipulation of settlement shall apply. Employees who had elected to receive a monthly municipal contribution in lieu of receipt of benefits during employment shall have the ability to have health benefits reinstated during the open enrollment period.
- IV. Employees who work less than twenty-five (25) years and have not attained the age of sixty-five (65), will be permitted to assume their existing package of benefits at the same cost currently being paid by the Township of Edison under the provision of the Federal COBRA Law requirements. These benefits are available as a package or as needed on an individual employee basis. The employee shall remit the required fees in advance and in no event shall the Township require more than six (6) months of premium and a maximum of two percent (2%) administrative fee. The responsibility of payment becomes that of the employee, with payments being made at the beginning of each month. All payments are to be directed to the Division of Human Resources with the checks being made payable to the Township of Edison.
- V. Following the execution of the contract, employees who work for the Township of Edison for twenty-five (25) full years and retire will receive the health benefits provided for in this Article, and coverage for the employee's surviving spouse in case of death of the retired employee.
- VI. Any retiree attaining the age of sixty-five (65), and qualified, must enroll into Part A and Part B of Medicare. While the Township will continue to pay for an eligible retiree's medical benefits, the Township will not be responsible for a retiree's Medicare premium. Retired employees who continue to receive the benefits will be responsible for monthly contributions as follows:

#### 2009 - 2011

	<u>Traditional</u>
Single	\$20.00
Parent/Child	\$25.00
Husband/Wife	\$30.00
Family	\$40.00

VII. Full time employees who are sixty five (65) years of age and have fifteen (15) years of continuous employment service with the Township of Edison or who turn sixty five (65) years of age and have fifteen (15) years of continuous employment service with the Township of Edison between January 1, 2009 and August 31, 2009 will be eligible for medical and dental insurance coverage upon retirement. This medical and dental insurance eligibility will not be available after August 31, 2009.

#### Medical and Dental

Single	\$15.00
Parent/Child	\$20.00
Husband/Wife	\$25.00
Family	\$35.00

### ARTICLE XVII HOLIDAYS

- A. All employees covered under this Agreement shall receive the following paid holidays:
  - New Year's Day
  - Martin Luther King's Birthday
  - Lincoln's Birthday
  - Washington's Birthday observed on President's Day
  - Good Friday
  - Memorial Day
  - Independence Day
  - Labor Day
  - Columbus Day
  - Veteran's Day
  - Election Day
  - Thanksgiving Day
  - Friday following Thanksgiving Day
  - ½ Day Christmas Eve
  - Christmas Day
  - ½ Day New Year's Eve
- B. If a holiday falls on a Sunday, it shall be observed on the following Monday. If a holiday falls on a Saturday, it shall be observed on the preceding Friday. For those employees whose regular work week includes Saturday or Sunday, if a holiday falls on a scheduled day off it will be observed on the next work day.
- C. Should an official holiday occur while an employee is on sick or vacation leave, the employee shall not have that holiday charged against sick, vacation or funeral leave.
- D. Telecommunicators/Supervising Public Safety Telecommunicator and Public Safety Telecommunicator Coordinator shall receive a check for one hundred fifty (150) paid holiday hours per year in lieu of the above holidays. Payment will be made at the current rate of pay during the month of October.

E. Permanent part-time employees who average a minimum of twenty (20) hours per week, based upon a one hundred twenty (120) calendar day average will receive pro-rated paid holidays based on hours of work per week, divided by thirty-five (35), multiplied by one hundred five (105). For example: Using this formula, a part-time employee who works an average of twenty (20) hours per week would be pro-rated as follows:

Average hours worked per week 
$$\frac{20}{35} \times \frac{105^*}{1} = \frac{2100}{35} = 60 \text{ hours}$$

<u>PLEASE NOTE:</u> In all instances where there is a fraction of an hour, the employee will be credited for a full hour.

Any permanent part-time employee who is a member of the Union on or prior to September 17, 2003 and who is receiving holiday time shall continue to receive pro rata holiday time regardless of whether the average number of hours worked are less than twenty (20) per week.

F. The provisions of this Article shall not apply retroactively.

<sup>\*</sup> Number of holiday hours for full time employees based on a seven (7) hour day.

# ARTICLE XVIII WORK INCURRED INJURIES

- A. Employees who are injured, whether slightly or severely, while working, must make a report within eleven (11) regular working hours thereof to the Department Head or Supervisor.
- B. Employees may not return to work without a certification from the attending physician that he/she is capable of returning to work. At the expense of the Township, the Township may require an additional certification of the employee's ability to return to work from a Township physician.

# ARTICLE XIX DISCRIMINATION AND COERCION

- A. The Employer and the Union agree that there shall be no discrimination against any employee because of age, race, creed, color, religion, marital status, sex, political affiliation, sexual preference, physical disability, national origin or any other status protected by state and federal law.
- B. The Employer and the Union agree that all employees covered under this Agreement have the right without fear of penalty or reprisal to form, join, assist any employee organization or to refrain from any such activity and to perform their job duties in accordance with applicable local, State, Federal law and normal Township policy that is usual and customary to the performance of their particular job title. There shall be no discrimination by the Employer or the Union against any employee because of the employee's membership or non-membership or activity or non-activity in the Union.

### ARTICLE XX SEPARABILITY AND SAVINGS

If any provision of this Agreement or any application of this Agreement to any employee or group of employees is held to be contrary to law, then such provision or application shall not be deemed valid and subsisting, except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or applications shall continue in full force and effect.

## ARTICLE XXI DEDUCTIONS FROM SALARY

A. the Township agrees to deduct from the salaries of its employees, subject to this Agreement, dues from the Union. Such deductions shall be made in compliance with Chapter 123, Public Law of 1974, N.J.S.A. (R.S.) 52:14-15.9e as amended.

B. A check-off shall commence for each employee who signs a properly dated authorization card, supplied by the Union and verified by the Township during the month following the filing of such card with the Township. All monies shall be forwarded to A.F.S.C.M.E. Council 73 at Nottingham Village Square, 2653A Whitehorse-Hamilton Square Road, Hamilton, NJ 08690.

C. If during the life of this Agreement there shall be any change in the rate of membership dues, the Union shall furnish to the Township written notice thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of such change and shall furnish to the Township either new authorizations from its members showing the authorized deduction for each employee, or an official notification on the letterhead of the Union and signed by the President of the Union advising of such changed deduction.

D. The Union will provide the necessary "check-off authorization" form and the Union will secure the signatures of its members on the forms and deliver the signed forms to the Township.

E. The Union shall indemnify, defend and save the Township harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits or other forms of liability that shall arise out of or by reason of action taken by the Township in reliance upon salary deduction authorization cards as furnished by the Union to the Township, or in reliance upon the official notification on the letterhead of the Union and signed by the President of the Union advising of such changed deduction.

### ARTICLE XXII JURY LEAVE

A. All employees covered under this Agreement who lose time from their job because of jury duty as certified by the Clerk of the Court shall be paid by the town their full daily base rate of pay, subject to the following conditions:

- 1. The employee must notify the Department Head immediately upon receipt of a summons for jury service.
- 2. The employee submits adequate proof of the time served on the jury.

B. If on any given day an employee is attending jury duty within the County of Middlesex, he or she is released by the court prior to 12:00 p.m., that employee shall be required to return to work subject to work schedule of each department that day in order to receive pay for that day.

#### ARTICLE XXIII PERSONAL DAYS

- A. Employees who work a minimum of twenty (20) hours per week, based upon a one hundred twenty (120) calendar day average, shall be allowed five (5) days of personal leave annually for transaction of personal business with the approval of the Department Head or immediate Supervisor. Such leave shall be non-cumulative.
- B. In addition, if an employee gets married, he/she is entitled to three (3) days off with pay. Employees may only receive this benefit once.
  - C. Personal Days must be taken in one (1) hour increments.
- D. Any permanent part-time employee who is a member of the Union as of September 17, 2003 and who is receiving personal days shall continue to receive personal days regardless of whether the average number of hours worked are less than twenty (20) per week.
  - E. The provisions of this Article shall not apply retroactively.

## ARTICLE XXIV ACCESS TO PERSONNEL FILES

A. Any employee covered by this Agreement shall have the right to inspect and obtain copies of documents from his/her personnel file maintained in the Township Personnel Department at any reasonable time upon five (5) working days written notice to the custodian thereof. Whenever any material is placed in the employee's personnel file, the Township agrees to notify the employee in writing of that action. The contents of the employee's personnel file shall not be made public unless required in disciplinary proceedings or by court order of subpoena process in a judicial proceeding or by New Jersey Right to Know law. Any employee covered by this Agreement shall be allowed to place in such a file a response to anything contained therein within ten (10) working days of notice that material has been placed in file. Only the material in this personnel file may be used against an employee with respect to any disciplinary action.

B. Any employee who has not been disciplined for two (2) consecutive years will not have any verbal or minor disciplinary actions (actions of less than six (6) days suspension) used against them in any future disciplinary actions. Any employee, who has not had any major disciplinary action (actions of six (6) days suspension or greater) for five (5) consecutive years from the time of the occurrence of the discipline, will not have any previous disciplinary action used against them in any future disciplinary action.

### ARTICLE XXV UNION RIGHTS

#### A. Union Stewards and Officers

- 1. A written list of Union Officers and Stewards shall be furnished to the Employer immediately after their designation and the Union shall notify the Employer promptly of any changes of such Union Officers or Stewards.
- Representatives of the Union who are not employees of the Township shall be permitted to visit with employees during working hours upon proper notification and approval of the Business Administrator or his designee. Such meeting shall not exceed thirty (30) minutes.
- In accordance with current practice, Union Stewards and Officers shall be permitted the reasonable use of Township equipment and supplies for local Union business. This shall not be on Township time except in cases of emergency.

#### B. Job Postings

All A.F.S.C.M.E. positions will be posted on the bulletin boards. The posting will include a description of the job, all required qualifications, the location of the vacancy, the procedures to be followed by employees interested in making application, pay rates and hours of work. Said application must be made within ten (10) working days of posting. A copy of the posting will be given to the Union President or his designee at least one (1) day prior to posting.

#### C. Job Bidding

- 1. All new or existing A.F.S.C.M.E. job openings will be offered first to all members of this bargaining unit. If after ten (10) working days no members of this bargaining unit fulfill the qualifications of the job posting, then the job will be open to anyone outside of this bargaining unit.
- 2. If one or more members meet the qualifications, Township seniority shall prevail.
- 3. All dispositions shall be given to the Union President or his designee in writing prior to the notification of the successful applicant.

#### D. New Positions/New Hire

- 1. All newly created positions agreed to by both the Union and Management shall be immediately incorporated into Appendix "A" and inserted into the mutually agreed upon career path. There shall be a mutually agreed upon starting salary set and inserted into Appendix "A".
- 2. No new employee will receive more than the starting salary of the title they are entering.

#### ARTICLE XXVI UNION BUSINESS

A. The President, Vice-President, Executive Board Member and/or Shop Steward of the Union, or delegate will be granted time off without loss of pay for the purpose of attending Union conventions, conferences or Union business provided that the maximum amount of such time off for the total amount of employees, without loss of pay during this Agreement, shall not exceed thirty (30) working days per year. The employee must notify the Employer and Human Resources Division of said leave at least five (5) working days prior to the convention, conference or Union business.

B. Leave under this section shall be limited to not more than four (4) employees at one time. However, an additional two (2) or three (3) employees may be permitted to leave work for Union business at the discretion of the immediate Supervisor or his/her designee. This shall not be unreasonably denied.

### ARTICLE XXVII CHECKOFF

A. The Employer agrees to deduct the Union monthly membership dues from the pay of those employees who individually request in writing that such deductions be made. The amounts to be deducted shall be certified to the Employer by the Treasurer of the Union and the aggregate deduction of all employees shall be remitted to Council 73 A.F.S.C.M.E., together with a list of names of all employees for whom the deductions were made, by the tenth (10<sup>th</sup>) day of the succeeding month after such deductions are made. This authorization shall remain in effect unless it is canceled in writing by the employee during the entire month of June in any year. Such written notice shall be sent to the Division of Personnel of the Township and the Union.

- B. Any employee in the bargaining unit, on the effective date of this Agreement, who does not join the Union within thirty (30) days thereafter, any new employee who does not join within thirty (30) days of initial employment within the unit and any employee previously employed within the unit who does not join within ten (10) days of re-entry into employment within the unit, shall have as a condition of employment pay a representation fee to the Union. Payment of the representation fee shall be by automatic payroll deduction. This authorization for automatic payroll deduction shall remain in effect unless it is canceled in writing by the employee during the period of June 15 - June 25 (both dates inclusive) of any year. Such written notice shall be sent to the Division of Personnel of the Township and the Union. The representation fee shall be in an amount equal to 85% (eighty-five percent) of the regular Union membership dues, fees and assessments as certified to the Employer by the Union. The Union may revise its certification of the amount of the representation fee at any time to reflect changes in the Union membership dues, fees and assessments. The Union's entitlement to the representation fee shall continue beyond the termination date of this Agreement so long as the Union remains the majority representative of the employees in the unit, provided that no modification is made in this provision by a successor Agreement between the Union and the Employer. For the purposes of this provision, employees employed on a ten (10) month basis or who are reappointed from year to year shall be considered to be in continuous employment.
- C. The Union shall indemnify and hold the Employer harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits and other forms of liability that may arise out of, or by reason of any action taken or not taken by the Employer in conformance with this provision. The Union shall intervene in, and defend, any administrative or court litigation concerning this provision. In any such litigation, the Employer shall have no obligation to defend this provision.

### ARTICLE XXVIII EDUCATION

- A. All employees covered by this Agreement shall be eligible to receive financial reimbursement for job related courses, including career or development, in the following areas:
  - 1. Business/Vocational/Technical/Training/Seminar/Workshop courses.
  - 2. Career development and continuing education courses which will aid the employee in his/her employment with the Township.
- B. Direct job relatedness for purposes of this contract shall mean a reasonable vocational association which enhances the ability of the employee to perform his/her function, may broaden the scope of his/her qualifications, allows him/her to better interact with other departments, allows the employee to maintain his/her skill or knowledge level at the current industry level in that particular field, keeps pace with changing laws, codes or regulations and generally adds to the betterment of the Township.
- C. All educational/training courses that are directly job related or that may enable an employee to qualify for promotional advancement in his/her department or career path, which have also been approved by the Business Administrator or his designee and that are successfully completed by the bargaining unit employees, shall be paid for by the Township in the amount per credit hour up to the amount charged by Rutgers University. Prior approval shall be requested in writing twenty-five (25) working days prior to registration. Receipt of the request shall be acknowledged by the Business Administrator and a copy provided to the Union President. Any request not responded to by the Business Administrator or his designee within ten (10) working days shall be deemed as approval for said courses reimbursement. All educational/training courses that are job related and are successfully completed by the bargaining unit members shall be paid for by the Township.
- D. "Successfully completed" means that to gain reimbursement, the employees must obtain a certification from the educational institution involved, indicating that if the letter grade is given for the course, a grade of "C" or better must be obtained. If no letter grades are provided, then a certification must show that the employee has completed and passed the course. Employees who leave the employ of the Township within one (1) year of receipt of the monies, shall remit all monies received, except in cases of death or disability which funds may be deducted from an employee's final paycheck.

- E. The cost of vocational training courses will be reimbursed at the rate of 100% (one hundred percent). All applications for vocational training courses must be submitted to the Department Head or the Business Administrator for review and approval before reimbursement can be granted.
- F. All employees shall receive reimbursement for the cost of books, supplies and lab fees for Business/Vocational/Technical/College/Seminar/Workshop courses, upon the submission of appropriate proof.
- G. All education reimbursement covered under this Article shall be paid within sixty (60) calendar days of said employee submission of all requirements.
- H. For budget purposes, employees will notify administration as much in advance as possible as to their intent to attend educational classes.
- I. All educational degree programs, including associates, bachelors and masters, to which an employee is admitted that is directly job related or that may enable an employee to qualify for promotional advancement in his/her department or career path, which have been approved by the Business Administrator or his designee, and that are successfully completed by the bargaining unit employee, shall be reimbursed at the rate of one hundred percent (100%). All Educational degree programs, including associates, bachelors and masters, to which an employee is admitted that are not directly job related or that may not enable an employee to qualify for promotional advancement in his/her department or career path, which have been approved by the Business Administrator or his designee, and that are successfully completed by the bargaining unit employee, shall be reimbursed at the rate of fifty percent (50%).

### ARTICLE XXIX BULLETIN BOARDS

The Township shall supply and maintain seven (7) bulletin boards in the sizes and locations listed below for the exclusive use of the Union for the purpose of posting Union announcements and other information. All such material shall first be submitted by a Union elected officer to the Township's Business Administrator or his designee and must be reviewed and approved by the Business Administrator or his designee before it can be posted. No such material deemed by the Business Administrator or his designee, to be controversial in nature, shall be posted.

#### Bulletin boards shall be as follows:

- 1. <u>Municipal Building</u> 24" x 36" to be located in main lobby on wall between Council Chambers and Tax Collector's office.
- 2. Police Department 18" x 24" to be located in main lobby behind switchboard operator, above water fountain.
- 3. Stelton Recreation Center 18" x 24" to be located in employee lunch room.
- 4. Minnie B. Veal Center 18" x 24" to be located in back copier room.
- 5. <u>Code Enforcement Office</u> 18" x 24" to be located on second floor in kitchen area near water cooler.
- 6. Woodbridge Avenue Senior Citizen Center 18" x 24" to be located in office area.
- 7. 911 Communication Center 18 x 24 to be located in Kitchen area.

### ARTICLE XXX CLOTHING ALLOWANCE AND UNIFORMS

- A. Transportation Drivers, Animal Control Workers, and Mr. Fixit will be provided with a uniform service that will consist of the supplying, cleaning and repair/replacement of five (5) long sleeve and five (5) short sleeve shirts, five (5) pair of pants, one (1) spring jacket and one (1) winter jacket. In addition, the Township will supply a voucher in the amount of one hundred dollars (\$100) to each employee covered in these positions to purchase one (1) pair of shoes and one (1) pair of waterproof boots every two years.
- B. Effective the signing of this agreement, all other employees currently receiving a clothing allowance of seven hundred fifty dollars (\$750) and Public Safety Telecommunicators will have that amount rolled into their respective salaries.
- C. It is important for all employees to project a professional image while at work by being appropriately attired. When working for the Township of Edison, any employee must adhere to casual business attire dress policy at all times in accordance with Township Handbook.
- D. Employees who are assigned uniforms must wear them while working. Uniforms must be clean, neatly pressed and in good repair when reporting to work. If the required uniform is not available for any reason (for new or temporary employees), those employees are expected to comply with the general dress requirements as well as any acceptable departmental guidelines that may be available for such circumstances.

### ARTICLE XXXI OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT

Employees will not be permitted to engage in outside employment which conflicts with their responsibility to the Township. Employees will be permitted to engage in outside employment if it does not constitute a conflict of interest and is work that would not be performed during the employee's normal hours of duty with the Township. However, the employee recognizes that his/her primary employment responsibility is to the Township and will therefore be available, immediately following hours of duty, upon reasonable notice by the Township, if he/she is called back to perform service on an emergency basis of hours other than his/her normal hours of duty.

### ARTICLE XXXII EMERGENCIES

- A. Emergencies and snow days are determined by the Business Adn
- B. In the event the Township Business Administrator or his design snow day prior to the start of any employee's shift that prohibits that emp Township shall compensate the employee for the full day at his/her regula
- C. In the event an emergency has been called by the Township designee at some time during the business day, and the employees are a the day, those employees who leave shall be paid as though they work ordered to stay during the emergency shall be paid overtime at the rationis/her regular days pay. Should an employee decide to stay during the entrate that employee will not receive additional compensation. An employee now will be required to deduct time off from his/her remaining personal or vacal
- D. In the event that an emergency is declared, the Mayor, his desinstitute a mandatory recall of Telecommunicator staff. Any employee sul shall be paid a minimum of four (4) hours at time and one half.

#### **ARTICLE XXXIII**

#### PROFESSIONAL LICENSES AND PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

A. Employees covered by this Agreement shall be reimbursed for all professional job related licenses and professional organization memberships as per the approval of the Business Administrator which shall not be unreasonably denied. Any employee required to take continuing education courses to maintain his/her professional licenses, shall be granted administrative leave time for such purpose without having the leave time charged to his/her vacation or personal time accumulation. Reimbursement for expenses incurred in attending continuing education units shall be paid as follows:

- 1. One half (½) basic occupancy room as established in the Federal Travel Regulations.
- 2. Meals with a daily maximum as established in the Federal Travel Regulations.
- B. All proper documentation will be required to receive reimbursement. All expenses to be reimbursed within sixty (60) calendar days.

# ARTICLE XXXIV CAR EXPENSES/TOLLS/PARKING

#### A. Car Expenses

Reimbursement for car expenses will be made at current I.R.S rate.

#### B. Tolls/Parking

Toll and parking expenses will be reimbursed when receipts are submitted.

- C. No employee shall be required to use their personal vehicle for Township business. An employee may opt to use their personal vehicle for Township business when a Township vehicle is unavailable or it is inconvenient to use such vehicle. Prior permission must be obtained by an employee desiring to use his/her personal vehicle for Township business from his/her Supervisor or Department Head.
  - D. All expenses to be paid within sixty (60) calendar days.
- E. No employee shall drive a Township vehicle or their own vehicle on Township business unless they maintain a valid driver's license. No reimbursement under this Article shall be provided unless a copy of said driver's license is provided.

#### ARTICLE XXXV SENIORITY, LAYOFF AND RECALL

A. Seniority is defined as the length of time equal to each employee's unbroken, continuous service with the Township since the first day of hire or since the last break in continuous service.

- B. A break in continuous service is caused by the following:
  - 1. Resignation or retirement.
  - 2. Discharge for cause.
  - 3. Failure to respond to a Notice of Recall within five (5) working days and to report for work within the same five (5) working days, provided however, that if a recalled employee is employed elsewhere at the time of recall, the report date may be delayed for an additional five (5) working days.
  - 4. Failure to report to work the first regular workday following the end of a leave of absence period, unless prevented by conditions beyond the employee's control.
  - 5. Inability to work as a result of sickness or injury for a period <u>exceeding</u> twenty-four (24) months.
  - 6. Layoff for more than twenty-four (24) months or for the number of months of service, prior to the start of the layoff, whichever is less.
  - 7. Death.
- C. All employees shall be given twenty (20) working days written notice prior to layoff.
- D. All probationary, temporary, summer and part-time employees shall be laid off before any layoff of full-time employees occurs.
- E. Employees subject to layoff in their classification shall be offered work in another classification within their career path, provided there is an available opening.
- F. Each employee shall have seniority in the classification in which he/she is placed. Reclassified employees shall have seniority in their new classification equal to their total unbroken continuous service with the Township. In the event a layoff is required in a given classification within a department(s), employees shall be laid off in strict seniority order with the person with the least seniority the first to be laid off and the person with the most seniority the last to be laid off. In the event that two (2) employees

were hired on the same day, for the purpose of layoff and recall, their seniority shall be in alphabetical order, with the letter "A" considered more senior than the letter "B".

In lieu of layoff, an employee may displace a less senior employee in the classification currently held or in any classification in the same career path, regardless of department, provided the employee is qualified to perform the functions of that different job classification.

For the purpose of this paragraph, there are two (2) career paths as follows:

FAMILY	TIER	TITLE
1		Accountant
1		Accountant/Principal
. 1	•	Accountant/Senior
1		Administration Administrative Assistant
1		Administration Administrative Assistant/Principal
1		Administration Administrative Assistant/Senior
1		Assistant Court Administrator
1		Assistant Purchasing Agent
1		CDBG Coordinator
1		Finance Administrative Assistant
1		Finance Administrative Assistant/Principal
1		Finance Administrative Assistant/Senior
1		Fire Administrative Assistant
1		Fire Administrative Assistant/Principal
1		Fire Administrative Assistant/Senior
1		Health & Human Services Administrative Assistant
1		Health & Human Services Administrative Assistant/Principal
1		Health & Human Services Administrative Assistant/Senior
ī		Planning/Engineering Administrative Assistant
1		Planning/Engineering Administrative Assistant/Principal
Ĩ		Planning/Engineering Administrative Assistant/Senior
1		Police Administrative Assistant
1		Police Administrative Assistant/Principal
	·	Police Administrative Assistant/Senior
-1		Police Information & Records Bureau Coordinator
1		Police Information & Records Bureau Coordinator/Principal
1		Public Works Administrative Assistant
1		Public Works Administrative Assistant/Principal
1		Public Works Administrative Assistant/Senior
ī	•	Recreation Administrative Assistant
.1		Recreation Administrative Assistant/Principal
. T		Recreation Administrative Assistant/Senior
1		Supervisor of Recreation
1	• •	Supervisor of Recreation/Principal
.A.		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

FAMILY	TIER	TITLE
1	1	Accounts Processing Clerk
1	1	Accounts Processing Clerk/Principal
1	1	Accounts Processing Clerk/Senior
1	1	Animal Shelter Coordinator
1	1	Animal Shelter Coordinator/Principal
1	1.	Animal Shelter Coordinator/Senior
1	1	Assessing Coordinator
1	1	Assessing Coordinator/Principal
1	1	Assessing Coordinator/Senior
1	. 1	Assessing Processing Clerk
: 1	1	Assessing Processing Clerk/Principal
1	1	Assessing Processing Clerk/Senior
Î	1	Bookkeeper
î	1	Bookkeeper/Principal
1	1	Bookkeeper/Senior
1	1	Certified Deputy Court Administrator
1	î	Certified Deputy Court Administrator, Principal
1	1	Certified Deputy Court Administrator, Senior
1	1	Certified Technical Assistant
1	1	Certified Technical Assistant/Principal
1	1	Certified Technical Assistant/Senior
1	1	Clerk
1	1	Clerk/Senior
1	1	Clerk Typist
. 1	1	Clerk Typist/Principal
1	1	Clerk Typist/Senior
1	1	Clerks Office Records Processing Clerk
1	1	Clerks Office Records Processing Clerk/Principal
1	1	Clerks Office Records Processing Clerk/Senior
1	. 1	Code Enforcement Office Coordinator
1 1	1	Code Enforcement Office Coordinator/Principal
.д 1	1	Code Enforcement Processing Clerk
Д 1	1	Code Enforcement Processing Clerk/Principal
1 1	1	Code Enforcement Processing Clerk/Senior
, <u>1</u> 1	1	Collections Account Clerk
1	1	Collections Account Clerk/Principal
1	1	Collections Account Clerk/Senior
1 1	1	Deputy Court Clerk
1	1	Engineering Processing Clerk
1	1	Engineering Processing Clerk/Principal
1	1	Engineering Processing Clerk/Senior
1	1.	Engineering Secretary
1	1	Engineering Secretary/Principal
1	1	Engineering Secretary/Senior
i 1	1	Fire Processing Clerk
1 .	· 1	Fire Processing Clerk/Principal
1. ·		Fire Processing Clerk/Senior
1.	1	Health & Human Services Processing Clerk
1.0 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1	Health & Human Services Processing Clerk/Principal
<b>L</b> ages,	<b>≜</b> # *	60
		·

FAMILY	TIER	TITLE		
1	1	Health & Human Services Processing Clerk/Senior		
1	. 1	Health & Human Services Secretary		
1	1.	Health & Human Services Secretary/Principal		
. 1	1	Health & Human Services Secretary/Senior		
1	1	Health Records Processing Clerk		
1	ĩ	Health Records Processing Clerk/Principal		
1	1	Health Records Processing Clerk/Senior		
1	Ī	Health Records Secretary		
1	1	Health Records Secretary/Principal		
1	1	Health Records Secretary/Senior		
1	1	Housing/Program Specialist		
1	1	Housing/Program Specialist/Principal		
1	. 1	Housing/Program Specialist/Senior		
1	1	Municipal Alliance Records and Information Coordinator		
1	1	Municipal Alliance Records and Information Coordinator/Principal		
1	1	Municipal Alliance Records and Information Coordinator/Senior		
1	1	Payroll Coordinator		
1 1	1	Payroll Coordinator/Principal		
1	. + 1	Payroll Coordinator/Senior		
1	1 .	Payroll Processing Clerk		
1	1	Payroll Processing Clerk/Principal		
1	1	Payroll Processing Clerk/Senior		
1	1	Planning/Engineering Office Coordinator		
. 1	1	Planning/Engineering Office Coordinator/Principal		
1	1	Planning/Engineering Office Coordinator/Senior		
1	1	Police Administrative Secretary		
1	1	Police Administrative Secretary/Principal		
1	1	Police Administrative Secretary/Senior		
1	1	Police Data Information Coordinator		
1	1	Police Data Information Coordinator/Principal		
1	1	Police Information Coordinator		
1	1	Police Information Coordinator/Principal		
1	1	Police Information Coordinator/Senior		
1	1	Police Projects Clerk		
1	1	Police Projects Clerk/Principal		
1	1	Police Projects Clerk/Senior		
1	1	Police Records Processing Clerk		
· 1	1	Police Records Processing Clerk/Principal		
1	1.	Police Records Processing Clerk/Senior		
1	1	Police Secretary		
1	1	Police Secretary/Principal		
. 1	1	Police Secretary/Senior		
1 .	1	Processing Clerk/Cashier		
1 ·	1	Processing Clerk/Cashier/Principal		
1 1	1	Processing Clerk/Cashier/Senior		
1	1	Public Health Processing Clerk		
<u>.</u> . 1	,	Public Health Processing Clerk/Principal		
1 .	1	Public Health Processing Clerk/Senior		
1	î	Public Works Records & Information Coordinator		

FAMILY	TIER	TITLE		
1	1	Bullia Works Decords & Information Coordinator/Princil		
. 1	î	Public Works Records & Information Coordinator/Senior		
1	1	Purchasing Clerk		
1	1	Purchasing Clerk/Principal		
1	1	Purchasing Clerk/Senior		
1	$\hat{1}$	Recentionist/Switchboard Operator		
1	1	Garian Citizen/Transport/Outreach Secretary		
1	1	Senior Citizen/Transport/Outreach Secretary/Fillicipal		
1	1	Senior Citizen/Transport/Outreach Secretary/Senior		
1	$\hat{1}$	Senior Services Processing Clerk		
1	1	Senior Services Processing Clerk/Principal		
1	ĩ	Senior Services Processing Clerk/Senior		
1	$\tilde{1}$	Specifications Writer		
1	1	Violations Clerk		
1	1	Violations Clerk/Principal		
1	î	Violations Clerk/Senior		
1	1	Vital Statistics Processing Clerk		
1	1	Vital Statistics Processing Clerk/Principal		
1	î	Vital Statistics Processing Clerk/Senior		
2	1	Design Engineer		
2		Design Engineer/Principal		
2 2 2 2 2	1 1	Design Engineer/Senior		
2	1	Designer/Party Chief		
2	,լ 1	Designer/Party Chief/Principal		
2	1	Designer/Party Chief/Senior		
2	1	Planner		
2 2	1	Project Engineer		
	2	Assistant Planning/Zoning Officer		
2	2	Assistant Staff Engineer		
2		Assistant Staff Engineer/Principal		
2	2 2 2 2 2 2	Assistant Staff Engineer/Senior		
2	. 2	Assistant Zoning Officer		
2	2	Building Code Inspector		
2 .	. 4	Building Code Inspector/Principal		
2	2	Building Code Inspector/Senior		
2	2	Building Sub Code Official		
2	2	Building Sub Code Official/Principal		
2		Building Sub Code Official/Senior		
2	2	Chief REHS		
2	2	Design Engineering Aide		
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	2	Design Engineering Aide/Principal		
2	2	Design Engineering Aide/Senior		
2	2	Electrical Code Inspector		
<b>2</b>	2	Electrical Code Inspector/Principal		
2	2	Electrical Code Inspector/Senior		
2	2	Electrical Code Mispector/Bentor  Electrical Sub Code Official		
2	2	Electrical Sub Code Official/Principal		
<b>2</b>	2	FIECUICAI DUD COME OTITOTAM I IMOTPAM		

FAMILY	TIER	TITLE		
2	2	Electrical Sub Code Official/Senior		
2	2	Engineering Inspector		
2	2	Engineering Inspector/Principal		
2	2	Engineering Inspector/Senior		
2	2	Fire Protection Code Inspector		
$\tilde{2}_{i,n}$	2	Fire Protection Code Inspector/Principal		
2	2	Fire Protection Code Inspector/Senior		
2	2	Fire Protection Sub Code Official		
2 ·	2	Fire Protection Sub Code Official/Principal		
	2	Fire Protection Sub Code Official/Senior		
2		Geriatric Specialist		
2	2 2	Geriatric Specialist/Principal		
2	$\frac{2}{2}$	Geriatric Specialist/Senior		
2	2	Housing Inspector		
2		Housing Inspector/Principal		
2	2	Housing Inspector/Senior		
2 2	2	Plumbing Code Inspector		
	2	Plumbing Code Inspector/Principal		
2	2	Plumbing Code Inspector/Senior		
2	. 2			
2	2	Plumbing Sub Code Official		
2	2	Plumbing Sub Code Official/Principal		
2	2	Plumbing Sub Code Official/Senior		
2	2	Public Safety Telecommunications Coordinator		
2	2 2	REHS		
2	2	REHS/Principal		
2	2 2 2	REHS/Senior		
2	2	Staff Engineer		
2	2	Staff Engineer/Principal		
2	2 2 2	Staff Engineer/Senior		
2	2	Supervising Public Safety Telecommunicator		
2		Supervising Public Safety Telecommunicator/Principal		
2 .	2	Supervising Public Safety Telecommunicator/Senior		
2	2 2	Technician Engineering Aide		
2	2	Technician Engineering Aide/Principal		
2	2	Technician Engineering Aide/Senior		
2	2	Zoning Officer		
2 2 2 2 2 2 2	2	Zoning Officer/Principal		
2	2	Animal Control Officer		
2 2	3	Animal Control Officer/Principal		
	3 3	Animal Control Officer/Senior		
2	<u>.</u>	Assessment Investigator		
2.	3	Assessment Investigator/Principal		
2	3.	Assessment Investigator/Senior		
2 2	3	Assistant Engineering Aide		
	3	Assistant Engineering Aide/Principal		
2 2 2	3	Assistant Engineering Aide/Senior		
2	3	Assistant Engineering Aide/Senior		
2	3	Engineering Aido/Principal		
2	<b>3</b>	Engineering Aide/Principal		
		63		
•				

FAMILY	TIER	TITLE		
2	3	Engineering Aide/Senior		
2	3	Health Investigator		
2	3	Health Investigator/Principal		
2	3	Health Investigator/Senior		
	3	Housing Investigator		
2 2	3 3	Housing Investigator/Principal		
2	3	Housing Investigator/Senior		
2	3	Junior Engineering Aide		
2	3	Junior Engineering Aide/Principal		
2	3	Junior Engineering Aide/Senior		
2	3	Juvenile/Youth Counselor		
2 2 2 2 2 2 2	3	Juvenile/Youth Counselor/Principal		
2	3	Juvenile/Youth Counselor/Senior		
$\frac{1}{2}$	3	Mr. Fix It		
2	3	Municipal Code Inspector		
2	3	Municipal Code Inspector/Principal		
$\overline{2}$	3	Municipal Code Inspector/Senior		
$\frac{1}{2}$	3	Public Safety Telecommunicator		
2	3	Public Safety Telecommunicator 1 year		
$\tilde{2}$	3	Public Safety Telecommunicator 2 years		
2	3 .	Public Safety Telecommunicator 3 years		
2.		Public Safety Telecommunicator 4 years		
$\frac{7}{2}$ .	3	Public Safety Telecommunicator 5 years		
2	3 3 3	Public Safety Telecommunicator Trainee		
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	3 :	Recreation Leader		
$\frac{1}{2}$	3	Recreation Leader/Principal		
$\overline{2}$	3	Recreation Leader/Senior		
2	3	Recreation Program Coordinator		
$\frac{-}{2}$		Recreation Program Coordinator/Principal		
$\overline{2}$	3 · · · 3	Recreation Program Coordinator/Senior		
2	3	Recreation Specialist		
	3	Recreation Specialist/Principal		
2	3 3	Recreation Specialist/Senior		
2	. 3	Recycling Inspector		
2	3	Recycling Inspector/Principal		
2	3 3 3 3	Recycling Inspector/Senior		
2	. 3	Shelter Maintenance Worker		
2	3	Shelter Maintenance Worker/Principal		
2	3	Shelter Maintenance Worker/Senior		
2	3	Social Worker		
2	3	Social Worker/Principal		
2	3	Social Worker/Senior		
2	3	Special Events Coordinator		
2	. 3	Special Events Coordinator/Principal		
2	3 3 3 3 4 3 4 3 3	Transport Driver		
$\frac{-}{2}$	3	Transport Driver/Principal		
$\frac{\overline{2}}{2}$	3	Transport Driver/Senior		
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	3	Video Camera Operator		
$\bar{2}$	3	Video Camera Operator/Principal		
-		<i>CA</i>		

FAMILY 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	TIER 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	Video Camera Operator/Senior Video Field Producer Video Field Producer/Principal Video Field Producer/Senior Zoning Inspector Zoning Inspector/Principal
2	. 3	Zoning Inspector/Senior

G. In the event of the elimination of a department and/or division, and a similar department and/or division is created, the seniority/layoff and recall shall be adhered to.

#### H. Recall

- 1. In the event that a recall is required in a given classification, employees shall be recalled in a strict seniority order inverse to the sequence of layoff, with the employees having the most seniority being recalled first and the employees having the least seniority being recalled last. Upon a recall, employees on layoff may exercise their seniority to return to the classification formerly held or to any classifications within the job family which they were placed at the time of the layoff.
- 2. Notice of recall shall be given in writing, return receipt requested, to the employee's last recorded address as reported to the Personnel Department. An employee shall be deemed to have received the notice of recall on the date the return slip is signed. If the employee is unable to receive written notice, for whatever reason, he shall be deemed to have received said notice five (5) working days after the notice is sent by the Township. A copy of said written notice will be given to the Union. Recalled employees shall be given up to five (5) working days after receiving certified notice of recall to return to Township employment before their recall rights are forfeited.
- In the course of a recall, employees who have displaced less senior employees, as provided in Paragraph four (4), will be given the opportunity to return in seniority order to their former classifications.
- 4. When an employee is recalled from layoff and reinstated, the employee is considered to have continuous service credit for computation of future earned benefits. The calculation of total period of continuous service however, does not include the length of the period of the employee's layoff.
- I. An employee who is transferred or "bumped" as a result of a layoff, shall have his/her salary reduced to the highest salary in the lower classification to which the employee is bumped, provided that the salary is not higher than his/her current salary. When such an incident occurs the employee shall

receive a salary equal to the next highest salary in the lower classification. In the event that an employee is transferred or "bumped" as a result of the layoff, into a job classification which is in the same tier as the job classification from which he/she is displaced, he/she will not have his/her salary reduced.

- J. In all applications of seniority, departmental seniority shall be given preference in vacation schedules, overtime, personal days and work shifts where a dispute arises between two (2) or more employees.
- K. In matters of promotion or demotion, if qualifications, abilities and fitness are equal, then the employee with the highest seniority shall prevail.
- L. The Township shall maintain an accurate, up-to-date seniority roster showing each employee's date of hire, classification and pay rate and shall furnish copies of same to the Union upon request.
- M. The Township shall promptly advise the appropriate Union representative of any change which necessitates amendments to the seniority list.

## ARTICLE XXXVI JOB DESCRIPTION/JOB QUALIFICATION

- A. The Employer will provide the Union, upon request, with a complete set of job descriptions for all job classifications covered by this Agreement. The Union shall be notified of any proposed changes in any job classification and shall have the right to negotiate on this subject.
- B. Telecommunicator Trainers will be compensated at three dollars (\$3.00) per hour to be paid in their regular pay check. Trainers are to have a training officer certification and be chosen on a rotating seniority list. The Township will make every effort to have as many Telecommunicators certified as possible. In the event the Township does not have a certified trainer, they may choose the person that they feel is best qualified.
- C. All titles covered in Appendix A are available as part time. The part time hourly rate will be calculated as follows: Yearly salary divided by twenty six (26) pays divided by hours (thirty five (35) or (40) forty) = hourly rate.
- D. When an employee meets the criteria as stated in the job descriptions to become a Senior or Principal in their title, the salary step stated in Appendix B will become effective July 1<sup>st</sup> of the following year. Two years of experience equates to thirty (30) college credits.
- E. Current employees will be credited with having time in grade in their new titles for time served performing the same duties under the old job titles, as long as they meet the educational requirements.

## ARTICLE XXXVII FULLY BARGAINED AGREEMENT

A. The Employer and the Union agree that this Agreement is the complete Agreement between them and that no other understandings, agreements or past practices prior to the recognition of A.F.S.C.M.E. Local 3269 on the Employer or the Union during the term of this Agreement shall be binding unless agreed to in writing between the Employer and the Union subsequent to the date of execution of the Agreement.

- B. This Agreement represents and incorporates the complete and final understanding and settlement by the parties of all bargainable issues, which were or could have been the subject of negotiations. During the term of this Agreement, neither party will be required to negotiate with respect to any such matter, whether or not covered by this Agreement, and whether or not within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both the parties at the time they negotiated or signed this Agreement.
- C. It is the intent of the parties that the provisions of this Agreement, except where noted in this agreement, will supersede all prior agreements and understandings, oral or written, expressed or implied, between the parties, and shall govern their entire relationship and shall be the sole source of any and all rights or claims, which may be asserted. The Union for the life of this Agreement, hereby waives any rights to request to negotiate or bargain with respect to any matters contained in this Agreement. It is mutually understood that this clause is a clear waiver as to any right not expressed in this Agreement.
- D. This Agreement is separate and distinct from, and independent of all other agreements entered into between the Union and other Employer organizations irrespective of any similarity between this Agreement and any such other agreements. No act or thing done by the parties to such other agreements, or notices given under the provision thereof, shall change or modify this Agreement, or in any manner affect the contractual relationship of the parties hereto.
- E. This Agreement shall not be modified in whole or in part by the parties except by an instrument in writing only executed by both parties.
  - F. This contract is to work in compliance with Federal and State laws.

## ARTICLE XXXVIII LABOR/MANAGEMENT MEETINGS

A. The parties to this Agreement agree to meet on a quarterly basis, if needed, to discuss matters of mutual concern. Either the Union or the Township may call for a meeting. The party calling for the meeting shall submit an agenda to the other party five (5) days in advance.

1. These Labor/Management meetings shall not be used to circumvent the grievance procedure and are designed to promote communication and harmonious relations between the parties.

### ARTICLE XXXIX DURATION

This Agreement shall be in full force and effect as of January 1, 2007 and remain in effect to and including December 31, 2011 without any reopening date. This Agreement shall continue in full force and effect from year to year thereafter, until one party or the other gives notice, in writing, no sooner than 150 (one hundred fifty) days, nor later than 120 (one hundred twenty) days prior to the expiration of this Agreement.

In WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals at Edison, New Jersey on this day.

For A.F.S.C.M.E. Local 3269	<b>∋</b> :	For the Township of E	dison:
Robert E. Stephens, Preside	3/6/69 ent Date	Jun H. Choi, Mayor	3/17/09 Date
Jennifer Lancry	3/16/09 Date	Witness Witness	M 3/17/ Date
Scott Pensak	3/16/09 Date	 Witness	Date
Pattie Leary	3/16/09 Date		

The following positions, in addition to the statutory exclusions noted in the Recognition Clause, Article I, are excluded from the collective negotiations units represented by A.F.S.C.M.E. Council 3269. While the titles listed on the following pages are represented by the Union, the particular positions within the titles listed below are excluded. To be determined.

Administrative Assistant	——Personnel Department
Administrative Secretary	Personnel Department
Administrative Secretary	Department of Law
Administrative Assistant	Mayor's Office

	2009	2010
Appendix A	2009	2010
	\$35,600	\$41,300
Accountant	\$35,600	
Accountant/Principal	\$35,600	
Accountant/Senior	\$25,600	\$28,300
Accounts Processing Clerk		\$28,300
Accounts Processing Clerk/Principal	\$25,600	
Accounts Processing Clerk/Senior	\$25,600 \$40,000	
Administrative Assistant Administration	1	
Administrative Assistant Administration/Principal	\$40,000	
Administrative Assistant Administration/Senior	\$40,000 \$40,000	
Administrative Assistant Fire		
Administrative Assistant Fire/Principal	\$40,000	
Administrative Assistant Fire/Senior	\$40,000	
Animal Control Officer	\$27,000	
Animal Control Officer/Principal	\$27,000	
Animal Control Officer/Senior	\$27,000	
Animal Shelter Coordinator	\$37,000	
Animal Shelter Coordinator/Principal	\$37,000	
Animal Shelter Coordinator/Senior	\$37,000	<del></del>
Assessing Coordinator	\$37,600	
Assessing Coordinator/Principal	\$37,600	
Assessing Coordinator/Senior	\$37,600	
Assessing Processing Clerk	\$26,600	
Assessing Processing Clerk/Principal	\$26,600	
Assessing Processing Clerk/Senior	\$26,600	
Assessment Investigator	\$30,000	
Assessment Investigator/Principal	\$30,000	
Assessment Investigator/Senior	\$30,000	
Assistant Planning/Assistant Zoning Officer	\$45,000	
Assistant Engineering Aide	\$30,000	
Assistant Engineering Aide/Principal	\$30,000	
Assistant Engineering Aide/Senior	\$30,000	
Assistant Staff Engineer	\$50,000	
Assistant Staff Engineer/Principal	\$50,000	\$52,500
Assistant Staff Engineer/Senior	\$50,000	
Assistant Zoning Officer	\$30,000	
Assistant Court Administrator	\$40,000	
Assistant Purchasing Agent	\$39,000	
	\$33,000	
Bookkeeper/Principal	\$33,000	
Bookkeepel/Filliopa	\$33,000	
Bookkeeper/Senior Building Code Inspector	\$41,000	
Building Code Inspector/Principal	\$41,000	
Building Code Inspector/Principal Building Code Inspector/Senior	\$41,000	
Railling Cone Hispectoryophio	\$53,000	
Building Sub Code Official	\$53,000	
Building Sub Code Official/Principal	\$53,00	
Building Sub Code Official/Senior	\$60,000	
CDBG Coordinator	\$32,30	
Certified Deputy Court Administrator	\$32,30	\$37,60
Certified Deputy Court Administrator / Principal	\$32,30	
Certified Deputy Court Administrator /Senior		
	•	*
A-1		

		T	· ·
Job Titles and Starting Salaries			
	2009	2010	2011
Appendix A	\$29,300	\$33,600	\$38,000
Certified Technical Assistant	\$29,300	\$33,600	\$38,000
Certified Technical Assistant/Principal	#20.200	\$33;600	\$38,000
Cermied Technical Assistant/Octrict	\$56,000	\$63,000	\$70,000
Chief REHS .	\$21,600		\$25,000
Clerk	\$21,600		\$25,000
Clerk/Senior	\$21,600	\$25,300	\$28,000
Clerk Typist	\$22,600		\$28,000
Clerk Typist/Principal	\$22,600	\$25,300	\$28,000
Clerk Typist/Senior	\$25,600	\$28,300	\$31,000
Clerks Office Records Processing Clerk	. \$25,600		\$31,000
Clerks Office Records Processing Clerk/Principal			\$31,000
Clerks Office Records Processing Clerk/Senior	\$25,600		\$43,000
Code Enforcement Coordinator	\$30,600		\$43,000
Code Enforcement Coordinator/Principal	\$30,600		\$31,000
Code Enforcement Processing Clerk	\$25,600		\$31,000
Code Enforcement Processing Clerk/Principal	\$25,600		\$31,000
Code Enforcement Processing Clerk/Senior	, \$25,600		\$38,000
Collections Accounts Clerk	\$29,300		\$38,000
Collections Accounts Clerk/Principal .	\$29,300		\$38,000
Collections Accounts Clerk/Senior	\$29,300		
Deputy Court Clerk	\$30,600	~	
Design Engineer	\$60,000		\$80,000
Design Engineer/Principal	\$60,000	\$70,000	\$80,000
Design Engineer/Senior	\$60,000		\$80,000
Designer/ Party Chief	\$57,500	\$65,000	\$72,500
Designer/ Party Chief/Principal	\$57,500	\$65,000	\$72,500
Designer/ Party Chief/Senior	\$57,500		\$72,500
Design Engineering Aide	\$55,000	\$60,000	\$65,000
Design Engineering Aide/Principal	\$55,000		\$65,000
Design Engineering Aide/Senior	\$55,000		\$65,000
Electrical Code Inspector	\$41,000		\$53,000
Electrical Code Inspector/Principal	\$41,000		
Electrical Code Inspector/Senior	\$41,000		
Electrical Sub Code Official	\$53,000	\$59,000	
Electrical Sub Code Official/Principal	\$53,000		
Electrical Sub Code Official/Senior	\$53,000		
Engineering Aide	\$39,000		
Engineering Aide/Principal	\$39,000		
Engineering Aide/Senior	\$39,000		
Engineering //toc/conjector	\$41,000		
Engineering Inspector/Principal	\$41,000		
Engineering Inspector/Senior	\$41,000		<del></del>
Engineering Processing Clerk	\$25,600		
Engineering Processing Clerk/Principal	\$25,600		
Engineering Processing Clerk/Senior	\$25,600		
Engineering Processing Old Notice Inc.	\$29,300		
Engineering Secretary/Principal	\$29,300		
Engineering Secretary/Finicipal Engineering Secretary/Senior	\$29,300		Man
Finance Administrative Assistant	\$40,000		
Finance Administrative Assistant/Principal	\$40,000		
Finance Administrative Assistant/Finance Administrative Assistant/Senior	\$40,000		\$46,000

		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	-
Job Titles and Starting Salaries			
Appendix A	2009	2010	2011
Fire Processing Clerk	\$25,600	\$28,300	\$31,000
Fire Processing Clerk Principal	\$25,600	\$28,300	\$31,000
Fire Processing Clerk Senior	\$25,600	\$28,300	\$31,000
Fire Protection Code Inspector	\$41,000	\$47,000	\$53,000
Fire Protection Code Inspector/Principal	\$41,000	\$47,000	\$53,000
Fire Protection Code Inspector/Timopal Fire Protection Code Inspector/Senior	\$41,000	\$47,000	\$53,000
Fire Protection Sub Code Official	\$53,000	\$59,000	\$65,000
Fire Protection Sub Code Official/Principal	\$53,000	\$59,000	\$65,000
Fire Protection Sub Code Official/Senior	\$53,000		\$65,000
Geriatric Specialist	\$38,000		\$50,000
	\$38,000	·····	\$50,000
Geriatric Specialist/Principal	\$38,000		
Geriatric Specialist/Senior Health & Human Services Administrative Assistant	\$40,000		\$46,000
Health & Human Services Administrative Assistant/Principal	\$40,000	~	\$46,000
Health & Human Services Administrative Assistant/Tiricipal Health & Human Services Administrative Assistant/Senior	\$40,000		\$46,000
	\$25,600		\$31,000
Health & Human Services Processing Clerk	\$25,600		\$31,000
Health & Human Services Processing Clerk/Principal	\$25,600		\$31,000
Health & Human Services Processing Clerk/Senior	\$29,300	······	\$38,000
Health & Human Services Secretary	\$29,300		\$38,000
Health & Human Services Secretary/ Principal	\$29,300		\$38,000
Health & Human Services Secretary/Senior	\$33,000		\$38,000
Health Investigator			\$38,000
Health Investigator/Principal	\$33,000		\$38,000
Health Investigator/Senior	\$33,000		\$30,000
Health Records Processing Clerk	\$25,600	\$28,300	\$31,000
Health Records Processing Clerk/Principal	\$25,600	\$28,300	\$31,000
Health Records Processing Clerk/Senior	\$25,600	\$33,600	\$38,000
Health Records Secretary	\$29,300		\$38,000
Health Records Secretary/Principal	\$29,300	\$33,600	\$38,000
Health Records Secretary/Senior	\$29,300	\$33,600	\$50,000
Housing Inspector	\$40,000		
Housing Inspector/Principal	\$40,000		\$50,000
Housing Inspector/Senior	\$40,000		\$50,000
Housing Investigator	\$33,000	\$36,500	\$38,000
Housing Investigator/Principal	\$33,000	\$36,500	\$38,000
Housing Investigator/Senior	\$33,000	\$36,500	\$38,000
Housing/Program Specialist	\$33,300	\$36,600	\$40,000
Housing/Program Specialist/Principal	\$33,300	\$36,600	\$40,000
Housing/Program Specialist/Senior	\$33,300	\$36,600	\$40,000
Junior Engineering Aide	\$26,000	\$28,000	\$30,000
Junior Engineering Aide/Principal	\$26,000	\$28,000	\$30,000
Junior Engineering Aide/Senior	\$26,000	\$28,000	\$30,000
Juvenile/Youth Counselor	\$39,000	\$42,000	\$45,000
Juvenile/Youth Counselor/Principal	\$39,000	\$42,000	\$45,000
Juvenile/Youth Counselor/Senior	\$39,000	\$42,000	\$45,000
Mr. Fix-it	\$23,300	\$26,600	\$30,000
Municipal Alliance Records & Information Coordinator	\$29,300	\$33,600	\$38,000
Municipal Alliance Records & Information Coordinator/Principal	\$29,300	\$33,600	\$38,000
Municipal Alliance Records & Information Coordinator/Senior	\$29,300	\$33,600	\$38,000
Municipal Code Inspector	\$29,000	\$38,000	\$38,000
Municipal Code Inspector/Principal	\$29,000	\$33,000	\$38,000

			•
w	•		<b></b> .,
	. <del> </del>		
Job Titles and Starting Salaries			·
		-0040	2011
Appendix A	2009	2010	\$38,000
Municipal Code Inspector/Senior	\$29,000 \$29,300	\$33,000 \$33,000	\$38,000
Payroll Coordinator	\$29,300	\$33,600	\$38,000
Payroll Coordinator/Principal	\$29,300	\$33,600	\$38,000
Payroll Coordinator/Senior	\$25,600	\$28,300	\$31,000
Payroli Processing Clerk Payroll Processing Clerk/Principal	\$25,600	\$28,300	\$31,000
Payroll Processing Clerk/Senior	\$25,600	\$28,300	\$31,000
Planner	\$70,000	\$75,000	\$80,000 \$46,000
Planning/Engineering Administrative Assistant	\$40,000	\$43,000 \$43,000	\$46,000
Planning/Engineering Administrative Assistant/Principal	\$40,000 . \$40,000	\$43,000	\$46,000
Planning/Engineering Administrative Assistant/Senior	\$29,000	\$33,000	\$38,000
Planning/Engineering Office Coordinator	\$29,000	\$33,000	\$38,000
Planning/Engineering Office Coordinator/Principal Planning/Engineering Office Coordinator/Senior	\$29,000	\$33,000	\$38,000
Planning/Engineering Office Coordinator/Corner  Plumbing Code Inspector	\$41,000	\$47,000	\$53,000
Plumbing Code Inspector/Principal	\$41,000		\$53,000
Plumbing Code Inspector/Senior	\$41,000	\$47,000	\$53,000 \$65,000
Plumbing Sub Code Official	\$53,000 \$53,000	\$59,000 \$59,000	\$65,000
Plumbing Sub Code Official/Principal	\$53,000		\$65,000
Plumbing Sub Code Official/Senior	\$40,000		\$46,000
Police Administrative Assistant	\$40,000		\$46,000
Police Administrative Assistant/Principal Police Administrative Assistant/Senior	\$40,000		\$46,000
Police Administrative Assistant Gerner Police Administrative Secretary	\$30,300		\$41,000
Police Administrative Secretary/Principal	\$30,300	\$35,600	\$41,000
Police Administrative Secretary/Senior	\$30,300		\$41,000 \$42,000
Police Data Information Coordinator	\$36,000 \$36,000	\$39,000 \$39,000	\$42,000
Police Data Information Coordinator/Principal	\$44,000		\$48,000
Police Information & Records Bureau Coordinator	\$44,000		\$48,000
Police Information & Records Bureau Coordinator/Principal	\$31,000		\$38,000
Police Information Coordinator Police Information Coordinator/Principal	\$31,000		\$38,000
Police Information Coordinate// miopal Police Information Coordinate// miopal Police Information Coordinate// miopal	\$31,000		\$38,000
Police Projects Clerk	\$26,600		\$34,000
Police Projects Clerk/Principal	\$26,600		\$34,000 \$34,000
Police Projects Clerk/Senior	\$26,600 \$25,600		\$31,000
Police Records Processing Clerk	\$25,600		\$31,000
Police Records Processing Clerk/Principal	\$25,600		\$31,000
Police Records Processing Clerk/Senior	\$29,300		\$38,000
Police Secretary	\$29,300		\$38,000
Police Secretary/Principal Police Secretary/Senior	\$29,300		\$38,000
Project Engineer	\$80,000		
Processing Clerk / Cashier	\$26,600		
Processing Clerk/Cashier/Principal	\$26,600		
Processing Clerk/Cashier/Senior	\$26,600 \$25,600		
Public Health Processing Clerk	\$25,600		
Public Health Processing Clerk/Principal	\$25,600		\$31,000
Public Health Processing Clerk/Senior Public Safety Telecommunications Coordinator	\$46,000	\$52,000	\$58,000
Public Safety Telecommunications Coordinates  Public Safety Telecommunicator Trainee	\$27,300		\$36,000
Public Safety Telecommunicator Tramos		•	
	•		,
A-4			
			ů.
	•••		

	r	<del></del>	
Job Titles and Starting Salaries	'		<u> </u>
[A	2009	2010	2011
Appendix A	\$32,000	\$35,500	\$39,000
Public Safety Telecommunicator	\$32,000	\$35,500	\$39,000
Public Safety Telecommunicator 1 Year	\$32,000	\$35,500	\$39,000
Public Safety Telecommunicator 2 Years	\$32,000	\$35,500	\$39,000
Public Safety Telecommunicator 3 Years	\$32,000	\$35,500	\$39,000
Public Safety Telecommunicator 4 Years	\$32,000	\$35,500	\$39,000
Public Safety Telecommunicator 5 Years	\$40,000	\$43,000	\$46,000
Public Works Administrative Assistant	\$40,000	\$43,000	\$46,000
Public Works Administrative Assistant/Principal	\$40,000		\$46,000
Public Works Administrative Assistant/Senior	\$39,000		\$43,000
Public Works Records & Information Coordinator	\$39,000		\$43,000
Public Works Records & Information Coordinator / Principal	\$39,000		\$43,000
Public Works Records & Information Coordinator /Senior	\$26,600		\$34,000
Purchasing Clerk	\$26,600		\$34,000
Purchasing Clerk/Principal	\$26,600		\$34,000
Purchasing Clerk/Senior	\$23,500		\$30,000
Receptionist/Switchboard Operator	\$40,000		\$46,000
Recreation Administrative Assistant	\$40,000		\$46,000
Recreation Administrative Assistant/Principal	\$40,000		\$46,000
Recreation Administrative Assistant/Senior	\$23,800		\$31,000
Recreation Leader	\$23,800	\$27,400	\$31,000
Recreation Leader/Principal	\$23,800	\$27,400	\$31,000
Recreation Leader/Senior	\$33,300	\$35,600	\$38,000
Recreation Program Coordinator	\$33,300	\$35,600	\$38,000
Recreation Program Coordinator/Principal	\$33,300	\$35,600	\$38,000
Recreation Program Coordinator/Senior		\$35,600	\$38,000
Recreation Specialist	\$33,300	\$35,600	\$38,000
Recreation Specialist/Principal	. \$33,300	\$35,600	\$38,000
Recreation Specialist/Senior	\$33,300	\$32,000	\$33,000
Recyling Inspector	\$31,000 \$31,000	\$32,000	\$33,000
Recylcling Inspector/Senior	\$31,000	\$32,000	\$33,000
Recycling Inspector//Principal	\$41,000	\$47,000	\$53,000
REHS			\$53,000
REHS/Principal	\$41,000	\$47,000	\$53,000
REHS/Senior '	\$41,000	\$33,600	\$38,000
Senior Citizens/Transport/Outreach Secretary	\$29,300	\$33,600	\$38,000
Senior Citizens/Transport/Outreach Secretary/Principal	\$29,300		\$38,000
Senior Citizens/Transport/Outreach Secretary/Senior	\$29,300	\$33,600	\$31,000
Senior Services Processing Clerk	\$25,600	\$28,300	\$31,000
Senior Services Processing Clerk/Principal	\$25,600	\$28,300	\$31,000
Senior Services Processing Clerk/Senior	\$25,600	\$28,300	\$30,000
Shelter Maintenance Worker	\$23,600		
Shelter Maintenance Worker/Principal	\$23,600		
Shelter Maintenance Worker/Senior	\$23,600	\$26,600	
Social Worker	\$36,300		
Social Worker/Principal	\$36,300		\$45,000
Social Worker/Senior	\$36,300		
Special Events Coordinator	\$41,000		\$45,000
Special Events Coordinator/Principal	\$41,000		\$45,000
Specifications Writer	\$41,000		\$40,000
Staff Engineer	\$55,000	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	\$65,000
Staff Engineer/Principal	\$55,000	\$60,000	\$65,000

Job Titles and Starting Salaries			
	2009	2010	2011
Appendix A	\$55,000	\$60,000	\$65,000
Staff Engineer/Senior	\$43,000		\$54,000
Supervising Public Safety Telecommunicator	\$43,000		\$54,000
Supervising Public Safety Telecommunicator/Principal	\$43,000	<del></del>	\$54,000
Supervising Public Safety Telecommunicator/Senior	\$46,000		\$50,000
Supervisor of Recreation	\$46,000		\$50,000
Supervisor of Recreation/Principal	\$50,000		\$55,000
Technician Engineering Aide	\$50,000		\$55,000
Technician Engineering Aide/Principal	\$50,000		\$55,000
Technician Engineering Aide/Senior	\$22,500		\$29,000
Transport Driver	\$22,500		\$29,000
Transport Driver/Principal	\$22,500		\$29,000
Transport Driver/Senior	\$24,000		\$30,000
Video Camera Operator	\$24,000		\$30,000
Video Camera Operator/Principal	\$24,000		\$30,000
Video Camera Operator/Senior	\$37,000		\$45,000
Video Field Producer	\$37,000		\$45,000
Video Field Producer/Principal	\$37,000		\$45,000
Video Field Producer/Senior	\$23,000		\$29,000
Violations Clerk	\$23,000		
Violations Clerk / Principal	\$23,000		
Violations Clerk/ Senior	\$25,600		
Vital Statistics Processing Clerk	\$25,600		
Vital Statistics Processing Clerk/Principal		<del></del>	
Vital Statistics Processing Clerk/Senior	\$25,600 \$27,600		
Zoning Inspector			
Zoning Inspector/Principal	\$27,600		
Zoning Inspector/Senior	\$27,600		
Zoning Officer	\$50,000 \$50,000		
Zoning Officer/Principal	\$50,000	\$35,000	400,000
			- ·
	<b></b>		<u>                                     </u>
		<u> </u>	<del> </del>
		<del> </del>	<u> </u>
		<u> </u>	
		<u> </u>	
			<u> </u>
			<u> </u>
			<u> </u>
•	<u> </u>	<del> </del>	<del> </del>
	L		

## SALARY STEPS

Appendix B	<u> </u>
	\$1,500
Accountant/Principal	\$1,500
Accountant/Senior	
A to December Clark/Principal	\$1,000
Accounts Processing Clerk/Principal Accounts Processing Clerk/Senior	\$1,000
Accounts Processing Clerio Serior	
Administrative Assistant Administration/Principal	\$2,000
Administrative Assistant Administration/Senior	\$2,000
Administrative / tooleans	
Administrative Assistant Fire/Principal	\$2,000
Administrative Assistant Fire/Senior	\$2,000
	#0.000
Animal Control Officer/Principal	\$2,000
Animal Control Officer/Senior	\$2,000
	\$1,500
Animal Shelter Coordinator/Principal	\$1,500
Animal Shelter Coordinator/Senior	41,000
	\$1,500
Assessing Coordinator/Principal	\$1,500
Assessing Coordinator/Senior	
Assessing Processing Clerk/Principal	\$2,000
Assessing Processing Clerk/Senior	\$2,000
Assessing Processing Gerwoonidi	
Assessment Investigator/Principal	\$1,000
Assessment Investigator/Senior	\$1,000
7.5555511078.117.004.g	
Assistant Engineering Aide/Principal	\$2,000
Assistant Engineering Aide/Senior	\$2,000
*	#2 000
Assistant Staff Engineer/Principal	\$2,000 \$2,000
Assistant Staff Engineer/Senior	\$2,000
	\$2,000
Bookkeeper/Principal	\$2,000
Bookkeeper/Senior	<u> </u>
This should	\$3,000
Building Code Inspector/Principal	\$5,000
Building Code Inspector/Senior	
Building Sub Code Official/Principal	\$3,000
Building Sub Code Official/Fitticipal Building Sub Code Official/Senior	\$5,000
Dulluling Gub. Gode Official Control	
Certified Deputy Court Administrator / Principal	\$2,000
Certified Deputy Court Administrator /Senior	\$4,000
Ocianos Dopur Odas in anno de la companya del companya de la companya de la companya del companya de la company	
Certified Technical Assistant/Principal	\$1,590
Certified Technical Assistant/Senior	\$1,500

·	
	\$1,000
Clerk/Senior	\$1,000
Clerk Typist/Principal	\$1,000
Clerk Typist/Senior	\$1,000
Olerk Typiou cerner	
Clerks Office Records Processing Clerk/Principal	\$1,000
Clerks Office Records Processing Clerk/Senior	\$1,000
	\$2,000
Code Enforcement Coordinator/Principal	Ψ2,000
Code Enforcement Processing Clerk/Principal	\$1,000
Code Enforcement Processing Clerk/Senior	\$1,000
Odd Lindson.	
Collections Accounts Clerk/Principal	\$1,500
Collections Accounts Clerk/Senior	\$1,500
	\$5,000
Design Engineer/Principal	\$5,000
Design Engineer/Senior	
Designer/ Party Chief/Principal	\$4,000
Designer/ Party Chief/Senior	\$4,000
Design Engineering Aide/Principal	\$2,000
Design Engineering Aide/Senior	\$2,000
Cl. 4 - 1 Code Ingonter/Principal	\$3,000
Electrical Code Inspector/Principal Electrical Code Inspector/Senior	\$5,000
Electrical Code inspector/corner	
Electrical Sub Code Official/Principal	\$3,000
Electrical Sub Code Official/Senior	\$5,000
	\$2,000
Engineering Aide/Principal	\$2,000
Engineering Aide/Senior	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
Engineering Inspector/Principal	\$3,000
Engineering Inspector/Senior	\$5,000
Engineering Processing Clerk/Principal	\$1,000
Engineering Processing Clerk/Senior	\$1,000
- in a contract of	\$1,000
Engineering Secretary/Principal	\$1,000
Engineering Secretary/Senior	
Finance Administrative Assistant/Principal	\$2,000
Fincance Administrative Assistant/Senior	\$2,000
	#4 000
Fire Processing Clerk Principal	\$1,000 \$1,000
Fire Processing Clerk Senior	\$1,000
	* \$3,000
Fire Protection Code Inspector/Principal Fire Protection Code Inspector/Senior	\$5,000

The Code Official/Dringing	\$3,000
Fire Protection Sub Code Official/Principal Fire Protection Sub Code Official/Senior	\$5,000
Fire Protection Sub-Code Official/Semior	····
Geriatric Specialist/Principal	\$1,000
Geriatric Specialist/Senior	\$1,000
Oction of State of St	
Health & Human Services Administrative Assistant/Principal	\$2,000
Health & Human Services Administrative Assistant/Senior	\$2,000
Health & Human Services Processing Clerk/Principal	\$1,000
Health & Human Services Processing Clerk/Senior	\$1,000
	64 000
Health & Human Services Secretary/ Principal	\$1,000 \$1,000
Health & Human Services Secretary/Senior	Ψ1,000
	\$1,500
Health Investigator/Principal	\$1,500
Health Investigator/Senior	
Health Records Processing Clerk/Principal	\$1,000
Health Records Processing Clerk/Senior	\$1,000
THEATH TACOURS TROOTED TO THE TOTAL THE TOTAL TO THE TOTAL TOTAL TO THE TOTAL TO THE TOTAL TO THE TOTAL TO THE TOTAL TO TH	
Health Records Secretary/Principal	\$1,000
Health Records Secretary/Senior	\$1,000
Housing Inspector/Principal	\$3,000
Housing Inspector/Senior	\$5,000
	04 500
Housing Investigator/Principal	\$1,500 \$1,500
Housing Investigator/Senior	\$1,500
- Day - See - Set Drive in all	\$2,000
Housing/Program Specialist/Principal	\$2,000
Housing/Program Specialist/Senior	
Junior Engineering :Aide/Principal:	\$2,000.
Junior Engineering Aide/Senior	\$2,000
July 100 Engineering / 100/00/100	
Juvenile/Youth Counselor/Principal	\$2,000
Juvenile/Youth Counselor/Senior	\$2,000
Municipal Alliance Records & Information Coordinator/Principal	\$1,500
Municipal Alliance Records & Information Coordinator/Senior	-\$1,500
	000.00
Municipal Code Inspector/Principal	\$2,000
Municipal Code Inspector/Senior	\$2,000
	\$2,000
Payroll Coordinator/Principal	\$2,000
Payroll Coordinator/Senior	Ψε,σοσ
DII Dragooging Clork/Dringing	\$1,000
Payroll Processing Clerk/Principal Payroll Processing Clerk/Senior	\$1,000
Payroli Processing Clericoeniol	

Planning/Engineering Administrative Assistant/Principal	\$2,000
Planning/Engineering Administrative Assistant/Senior	\$2,000
Planning/Engineering Office Coordinator/Principal	\$1,000
Planning/Engineering Office Coordinator/Senior	\$1,000
Plumbing Code Inspector/Principal .	\$3,000
Plumbing Code Inspector/Senior	\$5,000
Plumbing Sub Code Official/Principal	\$3,000
Plumbing Sub Code Official/Senior	\$5,000
	40.000
Police Administrative Assistant/Principal	\$2,000
Police Administrative Assistant/Senior	\$2,000
	#4 E00
Police Administrative Secretary/Principal	\$1,500 \$1,500
Police Administrative Secretary/Senior	\$1,000
	\$2,000
Police Data Information Coordinator/Principal	ΨΖ,000
Police Information & Records Coordinator/Principal	\$2,000
Police Information & Records Cooldinator/Principal	Ψω,σου
Police Information Coordinator/Principal	\$1,000
Police Information Coordinator/Senior	\$1,000
Police mornation Coordinator/Serior	
Police Projects Clerk/Principal	\$1,000
Police Projects Clerk/Senior	- \$1,000
Tonce Frojects Octive Child	
Police Records Processing Clerk/Principal	\$1,000
Police Records Processing Clerk/Senior	\$1,000
	·
Police Secretary/Principal	\$1,000
Police Secretary/Senior	\$1,000
Processing Clerk/Cashier/Principal	\$1,000
Processing Clerk/Cashier/Senior	\$1,000
Public Health Processing Clerk/Principal	\$1,000
Public Health Processing Clerk/Senior	\$1,000
Public Safety Telecommunicator 1 Year	\$2,500
Public Safety Telecommunicator 2 Years	. \$2,500
Public Safety Telecommunicator 3 Years	\$2,500
Public Safety Telecommunicator 4 Years	\$2,500
Public Safety Telecommunicator 5 Years	\$2,500
Public Works Administrative Assistant/Principal	\$2,000
Public Works Administrative Assistant/Principal Public Works Administrative Assistant/Senior	\$2,000
Public Works Administrative Assistant/Senior	\$2,000

Purchasing Clerk/Principal	\$1,000
Purchasing Clerk/Senior	\$1,000
Recreation Administrative Assistant/Principal	\$2,000
Recreation Administrative Assistant/Senior	\$2,000
	#4.000
Recreation Leader/Principal	\$1,000
Recreation Leader/Senior	\$1,000
Recreation Program Coordinator/Principal	\$1,000
Recreation Program Coordinator/Senior	- \$1,000
[Kedealio]] Fogiali Coordinatorochio	
Recreation Specialist/Principal	\$1,000
Recreation Specialist/Senior	\$1,000
Recycling Inspector/Principal	\$2,000
Recycling Inspector/Senior	\$3,000
	***
REHS/Principal	\$3,000
REHS/Senior	\$5,000
Senior Citizens/Transport/Outreach Secretary/Principal	. \$1,000
Senior Citizens/Transport/Outreach Secretary/Findipal Senior Citizens/Transport/Outreach Secretary/Senior	\$1,000
Senior Giuzens/ Fransport/Outreach Occidenty/ochior	
Senior Services Processing Clerk/Principal	\$1,000
Senior Services Processing Clerk/Senior	\$1,000
Shelter Maintenance Worker/Principal	\$1,000
Shelter Maintenance Worker/Senior	\$1,000
Social Worker/Principal	\$2,000
Social Worker/Senior	\$2,000
Charlet Funda Coordinator/Principal	\$1,500
Special Events Coordinator/Principal	\$1,000
Supervising Public Safety Telecommunicator/Principal	\$2,000
Supervising Public Safety Telecommunicator/Senior	\$2,000
•	
Staff Engineer/Principal	\$3,000
Staff Engineer/Senior	\$3,000
Supervisor of Recreation/Principal	\$2,000
A.L. JP.	000 64
Technician Engineering Aide/Principal	\$2,000 \$2,000
Technician Engineering Aide/Senior	ΨΖ,000
Transport Driver/Principal	\$1,000
Transport Driver/Senior	\$1,000
1 (alloport Diffordonio)	7.,
Video Camera Operator/Principal	\$3,000
Video Camera Operator/Senior	\$3,000

The Contract of the Contract o

77%	\$3,000
Video Field Producer/Principal	\$3,000
Video Field Producer/Senior	. \$3,000
	\$1,000
Violations Clerk / Principal	\$1,000
Violations Clerk/ Senior	\$1,000
	- \$2,000
Vital Statistics Processing Clerk/Principal	\$2,000
Vital Statistics Processing Clerk/Senior	\$2,000
Z-vis- Inencetor/Dringing	\$2,000
Zoning Inspector/Principal	\$4,000
Zoning Inspector/Senior	
Zoning Officer/Principal	\$5,000
Zoning Onicer/ Intoper	

<sup>\*</sup> The salary steps shall become effective July 1st, upon successful completion of conditions/criteria as stated in job descriptions.

# APPENDIX C <u>Departmental Career Paths</u>

### Purchasing:

<b>HOURS</b>	Purchasing Agent (Non Union)
WEEK	
25	A aniatant Density of A
35 35	Assistant Purchasing Agent
33	Specifications Writer
	Principal Purchasing Clerk
0.5	Senior Purchasing Clerk
<u>35</u>	Purchasing Clerk
	Principal Clerk Typist
<b></b>	Senior Clerk Typist
35	Clerk Typist
±1	Senior Clerk
35	Clerk
Fire:	
	Principal Administrative Assistant Fire
	Senior Administrative Assistant Fire
35	Administrative Assistant Fire
	Principal Fire Processing Clerk
	Senior Fire Processing Clerk
35	Fire Processing Clerk
	Principal Clerk Typist
	Senior Clerk Typist
<u>35</u> .	Clerk Typist
	Senior Clerk
35	Clerk
Municipal (	Court:
. <del>-</del>	Court Administrator (Non-Union)
	·
35	Assistant Court Administrator
	Principal Certified Deputy Court Administrator
	Senior Certified Deputy Court Administrator
<u>35</u>	Certified Deputy Court Administrator
35	Deputy Court Clerk
···	Principal Violations Clerk
	Senior Violations Clerk
35	Violations Clerk
35	Clerk

### Public Works:

Principal Public Works Administrative Assistant	
Senior Public Works Administrative Assistant	
35 Public Works Administrative Assistant	dinata
Principal Public Works Records & Information Coor	umaioi
Senior Public Works Records & Information Coordin	заюг
35 Public Works Records & Information Coordinator	
Principal Clerk Typist	
Senior Clerk Typist	
35 Clerk Typist	
Senior Clerk	
35 Clerk	
Principal Recycling inspector	
Senior Recycling inspector	
35 Recycling inspector	
Finance:	
Principal Finance Administrative Assistant	
Senior Finance Administrative Assistant	
35 Finance Administrative Assistant	
The state of the s	
Division of Tax Collection/Sewer/License & Permits	
Principal Collections Accounts Clerk	
Senior Collections Accounts Clerk	
35 Collections Accounts Clerk  Clerk/Conhier	
Principal Processing Clerk/Cashier	
Senior Processing Clerk/Cashier	
35 Processing Clerk/Cashier  Processing Clerk Typict	
Principal Clerk Typist	
Senior Clerk Typist	
35 <u>Clerk Typist</u> Senior Clerk	
" (7. 1	
Custody & Disbursements Comptroller (Non Union)	
Comptroller (Non Omon)	
Principal Accountant	
Senior Accountant	
35 Accountant Principal Bookkeeper	
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	
Senior Bookkeeper	
35 Bookkeeper Principal Accounts Processing Clerk	
Senior Accounts Processing Clerk	
35 Accounts Processing Clerk	
35 Accounts Processing Clerk	

### Public Works:

	Divisional Dublic Works Administrative Assistant
	Principal Public Works Administrative Assistant Senior Public Works Administrative Assistant
2.5	Public Works Administrative Assistant
<u>35</u>	Principal Public Works Records & Information Coordinator
	Senior Public Works Records & Information Coordinator
2.5	Public Works Records & Information Coordinator
<u>35</u>	Principal Clerk Typist
	Senior Clerk Typist
0.5	Clerk Typist
<u>35</u>	Senior Clerk
3.5	Clerk
<u>35</u>	Principal Recycling inspector
	Senior Recycling inspector
2.5	Recycling inspector
<u>35</u>	Recycling inspector
3.3*	
Finan	ice:
	Principal Finance Administrative Assistant
	Senior Finance Administrative Assistant
35	Finance Administrative Assistant
<u> </u>	
	Division of Tax Collection/Sewer/License & Permits
	Principal Collections Accounts Clerk
	Senior Collections Accounts Clerk
35	Collections Accounts Clerk
<u> </u>	Principal Processing Clerk/Cashier
•	Senior Processing Clerk/Cashier
35`	Processing Clerk/Cashier
	Principal Clerk Typist
	Senior Clerk Typist
35	Clerk Typist
	Senior Clerk
35	Clerk
	Custody & Disbursements
	Comptroller (Non Union)
•	•
	Principal Accountant
	Senior Accountant
35	Accountant
	Principal Bookkeeper
•	Senior Bookkeeper
35	Bookkeeper
	Principal Accounts Processing Clerk
	Senior Accounts Processing Clerk
35	Accounts Processing Clerk
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

### Police:

	Principal Police Administrative Assistant
	Senior Police Administrative Assistant
·35	Police Administrative Assistant
	Principal Police Administrative Secretary
	Senior Police Administrative Secretary
35	Police Administrative Secretary
	Principal Police Secretary
	Senior Police Secretary
35	Police Secretary
	Principal Police Information Coordinato
	Senior Police Information Coordinator
35	Police Information Coordinator
	Principal Police Projects Clerk
	Senior Police Projects Clerk
35	Police Projects Clerk
	Principal Clerk Typist
	Senior Clerk Typist
35	Clerk Typist
	Senior Clerk
35	Clerk
,	
٠.	
35	Receptionist/Switchboard Operator
•	
•	
* .	Principal Juvenile/Youth counselor
•	Senior Juvenile/Youth counselor
35	Juvenile/Youth counselor

Recreation:	
	Principal Recreation Administrative Assistant
	Senior Recreation Administrative Assistant
35	Recreation Administrative Assistant
	Principal Supervisor of Recreation
35	Supervisor of Recreation
	Principal Special Events Coordinator
35	Special Events Coordinator
	Principal Recreation Program Coordinator
•	Senior Recreation Program Coordinator
35	Recreation Program Coordinator
	Principal Recreation Specialist
·	Senior Recreations Specialist
35	Recreation Specialist
	Principal Recreation Leader
	Senior Recreation Leader
35 -	Recreation Leader
	Principal Clerk Typist
	Senior Clerk Typist
35	Clerk Typist
	Senior Clerk
35	Clerk

#### Planning/Engineering:

Principal Planning/Engineering Administrative Assistant
Senior Planning/Engineering Administrative Assistant

Planning/Engineering Administrative Assistant

Principal Planning/Engineering Office Coordinator
Senior Planning/Engineering Office Coordinator
Planning/Engineering Office Coordinator

#### Code Enforcement

Code Official (Non Union)

•	Principal Code Enforcement Office Coordinator
35	Code Enforcement Office Coordinator
	Principal Certified Technical Assistant
1	Senior Certified Technical Assistant
35	Certified Technical Assistant
	Principal Code Enforcement Processing Clerk
	Senior Code Enforcement Processing Clerk
35	Code Enforcement Processing Clerk
	Senior Clerk
35	<u>Clerk</u>

	Principal Building Sub Code Official
	Senior Building Sub Code Official
35	Building Sub Code Official
	Principal Building Code Inspector
	Senior Building Code Inspector
35	Building Code Inspector
	Principal Electrical Sub Code Official
	Senior Electrical Sub Code Official
35	Electrical Sub Code Official
	Principal Electrical Code Inspector
	Senior Electrical Code Inspector
35	Electrical Code Inspector
	Principal Fire Protection Sub Code Official
	Senior Fire Protection Sub Code Official
35	Fire Protection Sub Code Official
	Principal Fire Protection Code Inspector
•	Senior Fire Protection Code Inspector
35	Fire Protection Code Inspector
	Principal Plumbing Sub Code Official
•	Senior Plumbing Sub Code Official
35	Plumbing Sub Code Official
	Principal Plumbing Code Inspector
•	Senior Plumbing Code Inspector
35	Plumbing Code Inspector
	•

### Housing & Community Development

35	CDBG Coordinator
	Principal Housing/Program Specialist
	Senior Housing/Program Specialist
35 -	Housing/Program Specialist
	Principal Clerk Typist
	Senior Clerk Typist
35	Clerk Typist
	Senior Clerk
35	Clerk

### Planning/Zoning

<u>35</u>	Planner
	Principal Zoning Officer
<u>35</u>	Zoning Officer
<u>35</u>	Assistant planning/Assistant zoning officer
<u>35</u>	Assistant Zoning officer
	Principal Zoning Inspector
	Senior Zoning Inspector
<u>35</u>	Zoning Inspector
	Principal Municipal code inspector
	Senior Municipal code inspector
<u>35</u>	Municipal code inspector
	Principal Clerk Typist
	Senior Clerk Typist
<u>35</u>	Clerk Typist
Eng	gineering
<u>35</u>	Project Engineer
	Principal Design Engineer
	Senior Design Engineer
<u>35</u>	Design Engineer
	Principal Designer/Party Chief
	Senior Designer/Party Chief
<u>35</u>	Designer/Party Chief
	Principal Staff Engineer
	Senior Staff Engineer
<u>35</u>	Staff Engineer
	Principal Design Engineering Aid
٠.	Senior Design Engineering Aid
<u>35</u>	Design Engineering Aid
	Principal Assistant Staff Engineer
	Senior Assistant Staff Engineer
35	Assistant Staff Engineer
	Principal Technician Engineering Aid
	Senior Technician Engineering Aid
<u>35</u>	Technician Engineering Aid
	Principal Engineering Aide
	Senior Engineering Aide
<u>35</u>	Engineering Aide
	Principal Assistant Engineering Aid
	Senior Assistant Engineering Aid
35	Assistant Engineering Aide
	Principal Junior Engineering Aid
	Senior Junior Engineering Aid
25	Junior Engineering Aid

	Principal Engineering Inspector
•	Senior Engineering Inspector
35	Engineering Inspector
	Principal Engineering Secretary
	Senior Engineering Secretary
35	Engineering Secretary
	Principal Engineering Processing Clerk
	Senior Engineering Processing Clerk
35	Engineering Processing Clerk
	Principal Clerk Typist
	Senior Clerk Typist
35	Clerk Typist
***	

#### Health & Human Services

Principal Health & Human Services Administrative Assistant
Senior Health & Human Services Administrative Assistant
Health & Human Services Administrative Assistant
Principal Health & Human Services Secretary
Senior Health & Human Services Secretary
Health & Human Services Secretary
Principal Health& Human Services Processing Clerk
Senior Health & Human Services Processing Clerk
Health& Human Services Processing Clerk

### Housing Inspection/Environmental Health

35	Chief REHS
*	Principal REHS
	Senior REHS
<u>35</u>	REHS
	Principal Health Investigator
	Senior Health Investigator
35	Health Investigator
	Principal Health Records Secretary
	Senior Health Records Secretary
<u>35</u> .	Health Records Secretary

Principal Health Records Processing Clerk Senior Health Records Processing Clerk

35	Health Records Processing Clerk
	Principal Housing Inspector
r	Senior Housing Inspector
35	Housing Inspector
	Principal Housing Investigator
	Senior Housing Investigator
35	Housing Investigator

### Senior Citizens/Transport/Outreach

	Principal Senior Citizens/Transport/Outreach Secretary
	Senior Senior Citizens/Transport/Outreach Secretary
35	Senior Citizens/Transport/Outreach Secretary
-	Principal Senior Services Processing Clerk
	Senior Senior Services Processing Clerk
35 .	Senior Services Processing Clerk
	Principal Clerk Typist
	Senior Clerk Typist
<u>35</u>	Clerk Typist
35	Mr. Fixit
	Principal Social Worker
	Senior Social Worker
35	Social Worker
	Principal Geriatric Specialist
	Senior Geriatric Specialist
35	Geriatric Specialist
•	
	Principal Transport Driver
•	Senior Transport Driver
<u>35</u>	<u>Transport Driver</u>
	Principal Public Health Processing Clerk
	Senior Public Health Processing Clerk
<u>35</u>	Public Health Processing Clerk

#### Vital Statistics

Principal Vital Statistics Processing Clerk
Senior Vital Statistics Processing Clerk
Vital Statistics Processing Clerk
Principal Clerk Typist
Senior Clerk Typist
Clerk Typist
Senior Clerk
Clerk

### Municipal Alliance

Principal Municipal Alliance Records & Information Coordinator Senior Municipal Alliance Records & Information Coordinator Municipal Alliance Records & Information Coordinator

#### Shelter

w.	Principal Animal Shelter Coordinator
	Senior Animal Shelter Coordinator
35	Animal Shelter Coordinator
	Principal Animal Control Officer
	Senior Animal Control officer
35	Animal Control Officer
	Principal Shelter Maintenance Worker
•	Senior Shelter Maintenance Worker
35	Shelter Maintenance Worker
	Principal Clerk Typist
	Senior Clerk Typist
35	Clerk Typist
	Senior Clerk
35	<u>Clerk</u>

### Edison TV:

	Principal Video Field Producer
	Senior Video Field Producer
35	Video Field Producer
	Principal Video Camera Operator
	Senior Video Camera Operator
35	Video Camera Operator

### Clerk's Office:

	Principal Clerk's Office Records Processing Clerk
3	Senior Clerk's Office Records Processing Clerk
35	Clerk's Office Records Processing Clerk
	Principal Clerk Typist
	Senior Clerk Typist
35	Clerk Typist
	Senior Clerk
<u>35</u>	Clerk

### **Emergency Dispatch:**

35	Public	c Safety Telecommunications Coordinator
	, -	Principal Supervising Public Safety Telecommunicator
		Senior Supervising Public Safety Telecommunicator
4&4	10 Hr. Day	Supervising Public Safety Telecommunicator
		Public Safety Telecommunicator 5 years
		Public Safety Telecommunicator 4 years
		Public Safety Telecommunicator 3 years
		Public Safety Telecommunicator 2 years
		Public Safety Telecommunicator 1 years
4 & 4	10 Hr. Day	Public Safety Telecommunicator
4 & 4	10 Hr. Day	Public Safety Telecommunicator Trainee

<del></del>							2"7			, =7 =						-;							<del> ,</del>	<u> </u>	· ·	· · ·			1.6	110		1	T	175	1.0		116	T	175
		1	2020	DAYS	46	3 4	4	7 3	*	44	3	\$   £	71 5	7 7	4 3	4	\$   <del>\$</del>	3 6	85 8	80	38	38	37	37	36	36	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	ř	35	35	35	35	35
			2019	DAYS		3 4	45	2 3	# 1	44	3 3	3 5	42	7 3	Ŧ   ₹	# 5	€ S	\$ 8	35 6	8 8	BS.	38	3/	37	38	36	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35
	<del> </del>	-	2018	DAYS	10	45	45	2 2	=	‡ ¢	3 3	3 5	1 0	7 7	Ŧ   ₹	<del>1</del>   5	3   5	5 6	8 6	3 8	8	88	3/	.37	36	36	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35
	<u> </u>		2017 2	DAYS D	46	7 2	45	2 5	F   3	73	5 5	2 67	3 0	77 77	- 7	<del>-</del> 6	₹ €	2 8	R 6	8 8	20	88	3/	37	36	36	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35
-	-		2016 2		46	45	45	2 2	1	1 6	£ €	5 64	5 5	77.	F = =	± ;	<b>₽</b>   ₹	2 6	<u>त</u> ्र	2 6	38	38	3/	37	36	36	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35
		-	-	S DAYS	46	45	5 2	7 77	F   2	1 2	2 5	\$ 5	ic	7 2	7 7	£ 5	 ⊋  ç	2 6	S 08	2 2	သို့	38	١٥/	37	<u>8</u>	36	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35
-	ļ.,	-	1 2015	DAYS	46	45	45	44	1 7	43	<u> </u>	42	107	7.7	r t	<u>.</u> 5	}	2 2	8 G	3 0	o s	8 1	36	37	36	36	35	32	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35
			2014	DAYS																																			
			2013	DAYS	46										= =							88 1					35	35	35	35	35	35		35	35		. 35	35	
			2012	DAYS	46	45	45	44	77	43	? 5	42	42	1	1	7	404	2 2	2 8	3 6	000	3 3	?	37	95	98	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35
	JE.		2011	DAYS	46	45	45	44	77	43	43	42	42	41	44	,	4	2 2	200	3 8	9 6	38	7	. 37	35	36	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35
ū	VACATION CALENDAR SCHEDUL	ļ	2010	DAYS L	46	45	45	44	44	43	5 5	42	42	41	1	5	4	306	30	3 8	2 6	3 5	5	37	8 3	38	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35
NDIX	NDAR		2009	ဟ	46	45	45	44	44	43	43	42	42	14	41	5 6	\$ 8	30	30.	3 8	2 6	3 8	5	37	8 8	38	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35
APPENDIX	N CALE			YS DAY	46	45	45	44	44	43	43	42	42	174	44	. 07	40	30	3 8	38	200	37 6	3 3	37	00 0	99	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	. 34
	CATIO		~	S DAYS	46	45	45	44	44	43	43	42	42	41	41	. 0	40 .	30	30	88	3 0	37 00	5 2	37	8 8	36	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	35	34	34	33
	ΥA		2007	DAY			_		_	-		-			-	1	-	_	-	-	+	-	+			_			-										
										_	-	_			-			-	-	-			1		-	_	-	_					•••••						
																							-	-							-								
																																	•						-
							-											 		-		+	1					1											
				1												_					1		_			1		1	_								1		
			DATES		6/30/1967	12/31/1967	6/30/1968	12/31/1968	6/30/1969	12/31/1969	6/30/1970	12/31/1970	6/30/1971	12/31/1971	6/30/1972	12/31/1972	6/30/1973	12/31/1973	6/30/1974	12/31/1974	6/30/1975	12/31/1975	8/36/4078	12/34/4978	8/30/4077	414027	1781/18/7	6/30/1978	12/31/1978	6/30/1979	12/31/1979	6/30/1980	12/31/1980	6/30/1981	12/31/1981	6/30/1982	12/31/1982	6/30/1983	12/31/1983
<u> </u>			WEEN	_	6/3(	12/3	9/3	12/3	6/30	12/3	6/30	12/3	9/3(	12/3	6/3(	12/3	6/3(	12/3	6/3	12/3	6/3	12/3	10,00	12/2	8/3/	2 5	12/5	6/3	12/3	6/3	12/3	6/3	12/3	6/3	12/3	6/3	12/3	6/3	12/3
			HINED BETWEEN DATES		1/1/1967	7/1/1967	1/1/1968	7/1/1968	1/1/1969	7/11969	1/1/1970	7/1/1970	1/1/1971	7/1/1971	1/1/1972	7/1/1972	1/1/1973	7/1/1973	1/1/1974	7/1/1974	1/1/1975	7/1/1975	11111076	7/1/1978	4/4/4 077	11011	1181111	1/1/1978	//1/19/8	1/1/1979	7/1/1979	1/1/1980	7/1/1980	1/1/1981	7/1/1981	1/1/1982	7/1/1982	1/1/1983	7/1/1983
					=	7/1	#	771	111	12	=	7/7	Ξ	777	=	×	1,5	77	7,	717	\$	7,7	181	1	=	=   =				=	1	=	77.		XI.	\$	1	=	7

All Comments

			2019 2020	+-	3	35 35			36			35 35				35	35 35		35 35	200	-		35 35			25 25				25 25			25 25			25 25			25 25		
			2018 2	CO		35	35	322	3,4	3 2	35	355	35	35	355	35	32 32	35	35	3 5	000	2 5	200	32	Q7	25	25	25	25	25	25	25	25	25	25	. 25	25	25	25	25	•
			2017	T	35		35				35		35								3 2			45									25	25	25	25	25	25	25	25	
			2016	DAYS											35		35				2 2		3 8		C					25		.	25				25		25		
	-		2015	DAYS	35 35			35 35			35 35	35 35			35 35							ľ				].													25		
			3 2014	S DAYS	35 3		35 3		35 3		ļ				34				32 33			30	ļ			67 6		25 25		25 28		.5 25				25 25			20 20		
-			12 2013	'S DAYS		35				35		34	34				32	31	31				200		2,6		7 07						25 2		20 2				20 2		
	E E		2011 2012	DAYS DAYS	35	35	35	35	35	34	34	33	33		32	P8(7)		30	30	Δi.	1	28	28	25	2,5	3 26	43	67	C L	27	67	25	07			20					
	VACATION CALENDAR SCHEDULE				35	35	35	34	34	33	33	32	32	31	31	30	30	29	29	28	28	27	27	25	25	246	3 2	07	27	67	0.7	07	70	20	50	20	50	20	.30	20	
APPENDIX	ENDAR		$\dashv$		35	34	34	33	33	32	32	31	31	30	30	29	29	28	28	27	27	26	26	25	25	2,2	2,42	2 6	200	0 6	0.7	27	0,0	707	20	. 20	20	20	135	15	
АРР	TION CAL				34	33	33	32	32	31	31	30	30	29	29	28	. 28	27	27	26	56	25	25	25	25	2 02	2 5	2000	3 5	2 6	2 6	3 8	200	77	02	50	15	15	15	15	
	VACAT				33	32	32	31	31	30	93	29	53	28	28	27	7.7	56	26	25	25	24	24	20	20	20	18	2 00	300	2 2	2 6	2 6	2 6	7,	3,12	ב י	35	. (2)	15	15	
											_																														
																	+								•				·					-							
		·		-															**************************************			-													-		-				
		DATES	20100	6/30/1984	12/31/1984	6/30/1985	12/31/10BE	6/30//1986	42/34/4000	8/30/4007	12/34/4087	R/30/4080	42/34/4089	8/30/4000	12/34/1000	8/201/1909	12/34/4000	066171617	43/34/4004	12/31/1991	6/30/1992	12/31/1992	6/30/1993	12/31/1993	6/30/1994	12/31/1994	6/30/1995	12/31/1995	6/30/1996	12/31/1996	6/30/1997	12/31/1997	6/30/1998	12/31/1998	6/30/1999	12/31/1999	6/30/2000	12/31/2000	6/30/2001	12/31/2004	
		HIRED RETINEEN DATES		1/1/1984	7/1/1984	1/1/1985	7/1/1985	1/1/1986	7/4/1086	1/1/1987	7/1/1/987	1/1/1988	7/1/1988	1/1/1080	7/1/4980	1/4/4000	7/1/1990	4/4/4004	7/4/4004	12/1000	1/11/1892	7881111	1/1/1993	7/1/1993	1/1/1994	7/1/1994	1/1/1995	7/1/1995	1/1/1996	7/1/1996	1/1/1997	7/1/1997	1/1/1998	┼	<del> </del>	+	╁	╁┈	+	7/1/2004	

#### RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the A.F.S.C.M.E. Local No. 3269, has been certified as a Collective Bargaining agent; and

WHEREAS, the Administration has negotiated a Collective Bargaining Agreement with Local No. 3269, which agreement requires the approval of the Township Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Municipal Council of the Township of Edison, that they Mayor and Township Clerk are hereby authorized to execute an agreement with the A.F.S.C.M.E., Local No. 3269, for the period from January 1, 2007 through December 31, 2011.

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that this is a true and compared copy of a Resolution adopted by the Municipal Council of the Township of Edison at their Regular Meeting of December 22, 2008.

Reina A. Murphy, RMC Municipal Clerk